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Du Yunbin

=+ /& Chairman

On behalf of the Board of Directors of CNNC International Limited
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”), | am
pleased to present the annual results of the Group for the year ended
31st December, 2015 (the “Year").

BUSINESS

2015 was a difficult year for the Group’s 37.2% owned associate,
Société des Mines d'Azelik S.A. (“Somina”). Due to the tight cash flow
position of Somina, the production of its uranium mine in Niger has
temporarily been suspended since February 2015. After heavy losses
incurred by Somina in previous and current years, the carrying value
of the Group’s investment in Somina has been reduced to zero and
the Group would not share any further loss of Somina. The uranium
trading market conditions were still poor in 2015 and have adversely
affected the Group’s revenue despite the Group’s all-out efforts to
seek business. The Group has continued the negotiation with the
relevant Mongolian authorities for the terms in the joint venture
agreement for the joint operation to develop the Mongolian uranium
resources project.
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RESULTS

The Group reported revenue of approximately HK$57,755,000 (2014:
approximately HK$520,380,000) for the Year. Gross profit was
approximately HK$1,585,000 (2014: approximately HK$39,383,000).
Mainly due to the impairment loss on amount due from an associate
and the share of loss of an associate, the total comprehensive expense
for the Year attributable to owners of the Company was approximately
HK$220,711,000 (2014: approximately HK$156,375,000).

BUSINESS PROSPECTS

The Group will continue to engage in uranium trading business and
focus on development and investment in uranium mines. The top
priorities for Somina are to safeguard its assets and to wait for the
right conditions to resume its production. For the Mongolian Project,
the Group will continue to negotiate on the formation of the joint
venture company with the Mongolian Government and complete all
the procedures for the application of mining license.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | would like to take this
opportunity to express my heartfelt appreciation to our shareholders,
customers and business partners for their long-standing supports and
my gratitude to the Group’s management team and staff for their
endeavours and contributions in the past year.

Du Yunbin
Chairman

Hong Kong, 22nd March, 2016
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MARKET OVERVIEW

The Group has been engaged in the uranium product trading business
since 2012. However, due to poor market environment for the uranium
product trading business, the trading activities for the year ended
31st December, 2015 (the "Year”) have slowed down, as compared to
previous years. Although the price of uranium product hit bottom in
2014, the price in 2015 remained low as there were surplus reserves
of uranium product in the market. Nevertheless it is the intention of
the Group to continue its uranium product trading business and the
Group will closely monitor the market conditions for further uranium
product trading business.

Through the acquisition of Ideal Mining Limited (“Ideal Mining”), the
Group holds 37.2% equity interest in Société des Mines d'Azelik S.A.
("Somina”) which owns a uranium mine in Niger (the “Niger Mine").
The production process of Somina had encountered multiple difficulties
since the commencement of production operation. With issues such as
project delays, construction over budgets and under production, Somina
had suffered heavy losses and been in default bank loans repayment.
As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 17th February,
2015, due to tight cash flow position, Somina had temporarily suspended
the production of the Niger Mine (the “Suspension”) since about mid
February 2015 after completion of the annual routine maintenance
(including passing the safety inspection). The Suspension involved placing
the Niger Mine on care and the remaining ore body will be preserved until
the cash flow position is improved. If Somina is to resume production,
it would require a large amount of capital. Under such circumstances,
Somina cannot predict the date of resuming production and, it would be
very difficult for it to break-even in a short time and losses may continue
to grow even if it resumes production. As the associate has run into
serious going concern problem and significant loss was incurred during
the Year, the Group has made full provision on loan receivables from
Somina amounting to HK$72,898,000 as disclosed in the Company’s
Interim Report 2015 and the share of loss of Somina for the Year by the
Group amounting to HK$135,715,000. The Group will closely monitor the
situation.

During the Year, the Group had negotiations with the representatives
of the Mongolian Government in relation to the formation of a joint
venture company for the operation of the uranium mine in Mongolia
(“Mongolian Project”). The Group is still waiting for feedback from
the Mongolian Government. All exploration works of the Mongolian
Project had been completed. Progress has also been made with respect
to the environment impact report which is still subject to approval of
the Mongolian Government.
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Management Discussion and
EHEMNRES T

During the Year, the Group strengthened its research in the investment
and development of global uranium mines. The Group also contacted
with some mining companies with intention to explore the possibility
of an in-depth cooperation.

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the Year, the Group reported a revenue of approximately
HK$57,755,000 (2014: approximately HK$520,380,000) from
its operating business, realizing a gross profit of approximately
HK$1,585,000 (2014: approximately HK$39,383,000).
approximately 88.9% lower than that of last year as the market

Revenue was

conditions were difficult for trading of uranium products. Cost of
sales included an impairment loss of inventory of approximately
HK$1,109,000 (2014: approximately HK$8,566,000) arising from the
decline in the market price of uranium products at the end of 2015.

Other income, gains and losses of approximately HK$4,792,000 (2014:
approximately HK$5,954,000) were mainly from interest income,
commission income and compensation from a litigation received by
a subsidiary company in Mongolia. Such amount was approximately
19.5% lowered than that of corresponding period last year as the
commission income and the final compensation payment received
in the Year dropped as compared to last year. The administrative
expenses of approximately HK$18,363,000 (2014: approximately
HK$21,196,000) was approximately 13.4% below to that of the
corresponding period last year, affirming the achievement of the
Group's effort on cost control.

The Group had entered into a loan agreement with Somina with
repayment by 31st December, 2016. In light of the deteriorating
financial position of Somina as a result of the Suspension and no
operating cash flow can be generated, the recoverability of the amount
due from Somina is in doubt, and the carrying amount of amount due

from Somina of approximately HK$72,898,000 was fully impaired.

The share of loss of an associate of approximately HK$135,715,000
(2014: approximately HK$180,364,000) belonged to the share of
loss of Somina during the Year. The carrying amount of interest in
an associate investment regarding Somina was zero after taken in
account of the share of loss during the Year. The share of loss was
approximately 24.8% lower than that of the corresponding period
last year as a further approximately HK$172,247,000 (2014: Nil)
unrecognised share of loss of an associate would otherwise be incurred
should the carrying amount of investment in an associate had not
been reduced to zero.
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During the Year, the Group did not record any interest expenses (2014:
Nil). The Group is currently free of any interest bearing debt. No tax
charge was provided as the Group incurred tax losses during the Year
(2014: approximately HK$174,000).

COMPREHENSIVE EXPENSE FOR THE YEAR

Summing up the combined effects of the foregoing, loss for the Year
amounted to approximately HK$220,599,000 (2014: approximately
HK$156,397,000). After taken into account of the loss of approximately
HK$112,000 (2014: gain approximately HK$22,000) of the exchange
differences arising on translation of foreign currencies, the total
comprehensive expense for the Year amounted to approximately
HK$220,711,000 (2014: approximately HK$156,375,000).

FUTURE STRATEGIES

The Group noticed that existing trading business of uranium products
and the investment projects in uranium resources are in stagnation.
However, against the backdrop of China’s vigorous development
of nuclear power, the outlook of long-term demand for uranium
products, the main fuel of nuclear power, is still optimistic. The Group
will closely monitor the market and prices of uranium products, and
intend to seek and negotiate with major uranium product traders in
the market, with a view to expand its supplier and customer base.
The Group will also continue to focus on development and investment
in uranium mines and step up efforts in research and negotiation
and seek long-term partners leveraging the good opportunities of
sluggish market and relatively low valuation of uranium mines to invest
quality mines. The Group will take advantage of the resources in the
parent company and its position in nuclear power industry in China
for continuous expansion of the Group’s business scale and income.

In view of the expected future uranium product price and the amount
of funds Somina could raise in the near future, Somina will assess the
plan for its next move. The top priorities for Somina are to safeguard
its assets and to wait for the right conditions to resume its production.
The Suspension of Somina will not have further material impact to the
operations of the Group, as the Group had made full provision for its
investment equity of and loan receivables from Somina and the Group
will continue to engage in the business of exploration and trading of
mineral properties as its principal activities.

For the Mongolian Project, the Group will continue to negotiate
on the formation of the joint venture company with the Mongolian
Government and complete all the procedures for the application of
mining license. The Group will ensure the costs on the project are
under tight control.
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Management ¢
EREA MRS

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 24th April,
2013, the Company and its parent company entered into a framework
agreement in respect of the uranium trading, provision of technical and
administrative support services. Such framework agreement expired on
31st December, 2015. As the mining license for the Group’s Mongolian
Project is still under application, the Group is yet to determine plans
for supplying uranium products to its parent group. The company
will continue to discuss with its parent company for the need of the
framework agreement.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31st December, 2015, the Group employed approximately 15
(2014: 16) full-time employees of whom 2 (2014: 3) were based in
Hong Kong, 8 (2014: 6) were based in the PRC and 5 (2014: 7) were
based in Mongolia. Total staff costs incurred during the Year amounted
to approximately HK$6,877,000 (2014: approximately HK$8,071,000).

Remuneration policies and packages for the Group’s employees are
based on their performance, working experiences and conditions
prevailing in the industry. Depending on the financial results of the
Group and the performance of individual employees, eligible staff
may also be granted discretionary performance bonuses, in addition
to basic salaries, retirement schemes and medical benefit schemes.
To raise work quality and management abilities of its employees, the
Group provides job rotation, in-house training and external training
courses to employees.
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LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31st December, 2015, the Group did not have any bank
borrowings (at 31st December, 2014: Nil). The Group had net
current assets amounting to approximately HK$343,566,000 (at

31st December, 2014: approximately HK$357,571,000) and the
current liabilities amounting to approximately HK$38,831,000 (at
31st December, 2014: approximately HK$41,899,000) as at 31st
December, 2015. During the Year, the Group continued trading
in uranium products, and as at 31st December, 2015, the Group
had no trade receivables (at 31st December, 2014: Nil) and trade
payables (at 31st December, 2014: Nil). Capital expenditures on plant,
equipment, leasehold improvements and construction in progress
were approximately HK$204,000 during the Year (2014: approximately
HK$216,000). Capital expenditures on exploration and evaluation
assets were approximately HK$2,433,000 (2014: approximately
HK$4,878,000). The Group did not have any commitment to purchase
additional property, plant and equipment that had been contracted
for but not provided in the financial statements as at 31st December,
2015 (at 31st December, 2014: Nil).

During the Year, net cash inflow from operating activities amounted
to approximately HK$143,519,000 (2014: cash outflow approximately
HK$53,043,000). The Group's cash on hand and bank balances
increased from approximately HK$210,579,000 as at 31st December,
2014 to approximately HK$348,778,000 as at 31st December, 2015.

Total shareholders” funds decreased from approximately
HK$790,596,000 as at 31st December, 2014 to approximately
HK$569,885,000 as at 31st December, 2015, mainly due to the
loss during the Year. The gearing ratio, in terms of total debts
to total assets, was approximately 0.06 (at 31st December, 2014:
approximately 0.05) as at 31st December, 2015.

ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF
SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATED COMPANIES

There were no material acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries and
associated companies for the Year.
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Management ¢
EREA MRS

EXPOSURE TO FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK

The Group’s income, expenditure of raw materials, manufacturing,
investment and borrowings are mainly denominated in USD, HKD,
Mongolian Tugrigs and RMB. Fluctuations of the exchange rates of
Mongolian Tugrigs and RMB against foreign currencies could affect
the operating costs of the Group. Currencies other than Mongolian
Tugrigs and RMB were relatively stable during the Year, the Group did
not expose to significant foreign exchange risk. The Group currently
does not have a foreign currency hedging policy for hedging significant
foreign currency exposure.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

There has been no significant change in the capital structure of the
Group since 31st December, 2014.

CHARGE ON ASSETS
Apart from the 37.2% of the share capital in Somina held by Ideal

Mining pledged to a bank for banking facilities granted to Somina,
there was no charge on the Group's assets during the Year (2014:
apart from the shares in Somina, Nil).

PURCHASE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SHARES

During the Year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed shares.
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CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
PRACTICES

The Company has complied with the code provisions laid down in the
Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix
14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) throughout the
year ended 31st December, 2015 (the “Year").

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Members of the Board of directors of the Company (the “Board”) are
collectively responsible for overseeing the business and affairs of the
Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) that aims at enhancing
the Company’s value for stakeholders. The Board is responsible for
making all major matters of the Company including: the approval
and monitoring of all major policies of the Group, monitoring
financial and operating performance, ensuring the integrity of the
Group's accounting and financial reporting systems, the declaration
of interim dividend, making recommendation of final dividend or
other distributions, overall strategies and budgets, internal control
and risk management systems, notifiable and connected transactions,
nomination of directors, Company Secretary and other significant
financial and operational matters. The day-to-day management,
administration and operation of the Company are delegated to the
senior management. The delegated functions are periodically reviewed
by the Board. Approval has to be obtained from the Board prior to any
significant transactions entered into by the abovementioned officers.

The Board currently comprises a total of six members including one
executive director, two non-executive directors and three independent
non-executive directors (“INEDs”), whose details are set out on pages
22 to 24. Members of the Board have different professional, industry
experiences and backgrounds so as to bring in valuable contributions
and advices for the development of the Group’s business. More than
one-third of the Board are INEDs and one of the INEDs has appropriate
related financial management expertise as required under the Listing
Rules.

Directors have full access to accurate, relevant and timely information
of the Group through management and are able to obtain independent
professional advices on issues whenever deemed necessary by the
directors.
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Corporate Governance Rep
tETARES

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Regular meetings are held by the Board at least four times a year to
discuss strategies and business issues, including financial performance
of the Group, and additional meetings will be held when necessary.
The Company has held regular board meetings in accordance with the
Listing Rules, the CG Code and also the Articles of Association of the
Company, formal notice and board meeting documents are also given
in advance to all directors. During the Year, the Board held four regular
meetings. Members of the Board can attend the meetings either in
person or through electronic means of communication. A record of
the directors’ attendance at regular Board meetings is set out on page
21.

The roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer are segregated
in order to reinforce their independence and accountability. Their respective
responsibilities are clearly established and set out in writing. The Chairman
leads the Board's workings and proceedings, while the Chief Executive
Officer is responsible for implementing the Group’s strategies and policies
and for conducting the Group’s businesses.

THE TERM OF APPOINTMENT OF NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The term of office of each of the non-executive directors is the
period from his appointment to the time of retirement by rotation in
accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the INEDs, an annual
confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. The Company considers all of the INEDs are independent.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by directors on terms no less exacting than the required
standard set out in the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) contained in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules. Upon the Company’s specific enquiry of each
director, all the directors confirmed that they have complied with the
required standard set out in the Model Code and the code of conduct
regarding securities transactions by directors adopted by the Company
during the Year.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the

financial statements of the Group. With the assistance of the
accounting department, which is under the supervision of the
management of the Company, the directors ensure that the financial
statements of the Group have been properly prepared in accordance
with statutory requirements and applicable accounting standards. The
directors also ensure that the publication of the accounts of the Group
is in a timely manner.

A report of the independent auditor on the Group’s accounts is set
out in this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ TRAINING

Pursuant to the CG Code, directors should participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills. This is to ensure that their contribution to the Board remains
informed and relevant. During the Year, all directors have participated
in appropriate continuous professional development activities by
way of attending training seminar or reading material on legal and
regulatory subjects relevant to the Company’s business or to the
directors’ duties and responsibilities.

INTERNAL CONTROL AND INTERNAL AUDIT

The Board acknowledges its responsibility in maintaining sound and
effective internal control system for the Group to safeguard investments
of the shareholders and assets of the Company at all times.

The system of internal controls aims to help achieving the Group's
business objectives, safeguarding assets and maintaining proper
accounting records for provision of reliable financial information.
However, the design of the system is to provide reasonable, but not
absolute, assurance against material misstatement in the financial
statements or loss of assets and to manage rather than eliminate risks

of failure when business objectives are being sought.

Management has conducted regular reviews during the Year on
the effectiveness of the internal control system covering all material
controls in area of financial, operational and compliance controls,
various functions for risks management as well as physical and

information system security.

Procedures have been designed for the business objectives, safeguard
asset against unauthorized use or disposition, ensure proper
maintenance of books and records for the provision of reliable financial
information for internal use or publication, and to ensure compliance

with relevant legislations and regulations.
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Corporate Governance
tETARES

INTERNAL CONTROL AND INTERNAL AUDIT

(continued)

Internal Audit Department has conducted an on going independent
review on the effectiveness of the system of internal control and
risk management of the Group and considers it to be adequate and
effective. Reports on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control
on difference areas had been submitted to the Audit Committee. It is
noted that there is no significant areas of concern which may affect
the effectiveness of the internal control system.

Throughout the Year, the Board is satisfied that the Group has fully
complied with the code provisions on internal control as set out in
Section C.2 of the CG code.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the Year, the remuneration paid to the Company’s auditor, Messrs
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, is set out as follows:

-
C

REPESIE R AEEF

ABEBEZHBAREBLERNASEANINE
ZHIEREREE ZREK - LR SE B
BEREEN - ABAKERTREEZANE
ERKMAELHRE  CREBKXZES
BE BHIE UBEBEARBBHETENR
MEERG I -

AEERN EZREM AEEZEETR
XERTREC2RMAAMAREIE 2T
{83

% S AT BN &
RAFE  BEARARBGED  HER
B TZMEHIIMT -

Services rendered

Fees paid/payable

Fr iR AR 75 Bt FE 1 8l &
2015 2014
—E—-RFE —T—@NF
HK$000 HK$'000
EETIT BT T
Audit services ET R 1,280 1,506
Non-audit services IEEETIRT
(i.e. Taxation, Interim Financial Statement Review  (Fi# - M EAsR & &
and Professional Service) N EER®) 533 532
1,813 2,038
AUDIT COMMITTEE BEZEEE
The Company’s Audit Committee was first established in December AR

2002 and its terms of reference are available on the Company’s
website.

The principal duties of the Audit Committee include reviewing the
Group's financial reporting system, internal control procedures, risk
management, assessing the adequacy of the human resources of the
Group's accounting and finance department and maintaining good
and independent communications with the management as well as
external auditor of the Company. Its current members include:

Mr. Cheong Ying Chew Henry (Chairman of the Audit Committee)
Mr. Xu Shouyi
Mr. Cui Liguo
Mr. Zhang Lei

RARIBEREZEER_ET_F+=
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AU D IT CO M M ITTE E(continued)

Three out of four members of the Audit Committee are the INEDs of
the Company. Mr. Cheong Ying Chew Henry has appropriate related
financial management expertise as required under the Listing Rules.
None of them is employed by or otherwise affiliated with former or
existing auditor of the Company.

During the Year, the Audit Committee held two meetings and also
had two meetings with the management and external auditors of the
Company. The minutes of the Audit Committee meetings were tabled
to the Board for noting and for action by the Board where appropriate.
The attendance of each member is set out on page 21.

During the Year, the Audit Committee reviewed the Group's interim
and annual report for the year ended 31st December, 2015 and the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group. The Audit
Committee also reviewed the adequacy and effectiveness of the
Company’s internal control system and made recommendations to the
Board.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company’s Remuneration Committee was established in

September 2005. Its current members include:

Mr. Cui Liguo (Chairman of the Remuneration Committee)
Ms. Wang Ying

Mr. Xu Shouyi

Mr. Cheong Ying Chew Henry

Mr. Zhang Lei

Three out of five members of the Remuneration Committee are the
INEDs of the Company. The terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee are available on the Company’s website.

The principal responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee include
making recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and
structure for the remuneration of directors and reviewing their specific
remuneration package for directors and senior management, including
terms of salary, discretionary bonus scheme, benefits in kind, pension
rights, compensation payments and other long-term incentive schemes
by reference to market conditions, performance of the Group and the
individual and corporate goals and objectives as set by the Board from
time to time.
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Corporate Governance Report ...
TEELRRE

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE continvea

The Remuneration Committee held one meeting during the Year. The
minutes of the Remuneration Committee meeting were tabled to the
Board for noting and for action by the Board where appropriate. The
attendance of each member is set out on page 21. During the meeting,
the committee members discussed the policy for the remuneration
of executive director and senior management and assessed the
performance of executives.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE
On 27th March, 2012,
Nomination Committee of the Company. Its current members include:

the Board approved the set up of the

Mr. Du Yunbin (Chairman of the Nomination Committee)
(appointed as Chairman of the Nomination
Committee with effect from 1st June, 2015)

Ms. Wang Ying

Mr. Cheong Ying Chew Henry

Mr. Cui Liguo

Mr. Zhang Lei

Three out of five members of the Nomination Committee are the INEDs
of the Company and the Chairman of the committee is the Chairman
of the Board. The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee
are available on the Company's website.

The principal responsibilities of the Nomination Committee include
reviewing the structure, size and composition of the Board at least
annually; making recommendations on any proposed changes to the
Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy; identifying
individuals suitably qualified to become Board members and selecting
or making recommendations to the Board on the selection of
individuals nominated for directorships; assessing the independence
of the INEDs; and making recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of directors and succession planning
for directors, in particular the Chairman and the Chief Executive
Officer.

The Nomination Committee held one meeting during the Year. The
attendance of each member is set out on page 21.
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Corporate Governance Report ...
tETARRE S

REVIEW OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
FUNCTIONS

The Board is entrusted with the overall responsibility of developing
and maintaining sound and effective corporate governance within the
Group and is committed to ensuring that an effective governance
structure is put in place to continuously review and improve the
corporate governance practices, including to review and monitor
the training and continuous professional development of directors
and senior management; within the Group in light of the evolving
operating environment and regulatory requirements.

The Group has adopted appropriate policies and practices on corporate
governance and the Board would make recommendations to the Group
by reviewing the operation of the Group from time to time. The Group
has adopted a code of conduct and compliance manual applicable
to its employees and directors. The Board confirmed that the Group
has complied with the legal and regulatory requirements and ensures
the Group’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure regarding
corporate governance.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

During the Year, the Company has adopted the Board Diversity Policy
in line with the amendments to the CG Code regarding board diversity.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary, Mr. Li Philip Sau Yan (“Mr. Li”), is responsible
to the Board for ensuring that Board procedures are followed and
Board activities are efficiently and effectively conducted. Mr. Li has been
appointed as the Company Secretary of the Company since 5th November,
2008. Mr. Li is also responsible for ensuring that the Board is fully appraised
of the relevant corporate governance developments relating to the Group
and facilitating the professional development of the directors.

Mr. Li confirmed that he has complied with all the required
qualifications, experience and training requirements under Rule 3.28
and Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The Board and management shall ensure shareholders’ rights and all
shareholders are treated equitably and fairly. Pursuant to the Articles
of Association of the Company, any shareholder entitled to receive
notice of and to attend and vote at a general meeting of the Company
is entitled to appoint another person as his proxy to attend and vote
instead of him.
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Corporate Governance Report ...
LEZTARE S

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS (continued)

Chairmen of the various Board committees, or failing the Chairmen,
any member from the respective committees, must attend the annual
general meetings of the Company to address shareholders’ queries.
External auditor shall also be invited to attend the Company’s annual
general meetings and are available to assist the Directors in addressing
queries from shareholders relating to the conduct of the audit and
the preparation and content of their auditor report. The 2015 Annual
General Meeting was chaired by Ms. Wang Ying, the Executive Director
of the Company, as the position of Chairman of the Board was vacant
at the time when the 2015 Annual General Meeting was held.

RIGHT TO CONVENE AN EXTRAORDINARY
GENERAL MEETING AND PUT FORWARD
PROPOSALS

Pursuant to Article 68 of the Articles of Association of the Company,
extraordinary general meetings can be convened on the written
requisition of any two or more members of the Company deposited at
the principal office of the Company in Hong Kong or, in the event the
Company ceases to have such a principal office, the registered office,
specifying the objects of the meeting and signed by the requisitionists,
provided that such requisitionists held as at the date of deposit of
the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company which carries the right of voting at extraordinary general
meetings of the Company. Extraordinary general meetings may also
be convened on the written requisition of any one member of the
Company which is a recognised clearing house (or its nominee(s))
deposited at the principal office of the Company in Hong Kong or,
in the event the Company ceases to have such a principal office, the
registered office, specifying the objects of the meeting and signed
by the requisitionist, provided that such requisitionist held as at the
date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the
paid up capital of the Company which carries the right of voting at
extraordinary general meetings of the Company. If the Board does not
within 21 days from the date of deposit of the requisition proceed
duly to convene the meeting, the requisitionist(s) themselves or any
of them representing more than one-half of the total voting rights of
all of them, may convene the extraordinary general meeting in the
same manner, as nearly as possible, as that in which meetings may
be convened by the Board provided that any meeting so convened
shall not be held after the expiration of three months from the date
of deposit of the requisition, and all reasonable expenses incurred
by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to them by the Company.
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RIGHT TO PUT ENQUIRIES TO THE BOARD
Shareholders have the right to put enquiries to the Board. All enquiries
can be in writing and sent for the attention of the Company Secretary
in one of the following ways:

1. By post: CNNC International Limited
Unit 2809, 28/F China Resources Building
26 Harbour Road
Wanchai, Hong Kong
By facsimile: (852) 2598 1010
By email: info@cnncintl.com

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND
COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company sees high quality reporting as an essential element
in building successful relationship with the Company’s shareholders.
The information provided will not only comply with the different
requirements in force but to provide additional information to
enhancing communications with shareholders and the investment
public. It is part of a continuous communication that encompasses
meetings, announcements to the market and circulars to shareholders
as well as periodic written reports in the form of preliminary
announcement of results and interim and annual reports.

The Company also maintains a corporate website on which
comprehensive information of the Group is provided.

There was no significant change in the constitutional documents of
the Company during the Year.
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tEELRHE
\_;.&
DIRECTORS’ ATTENDANCE AT BOARD, EER EBREST  FHE
AUDIT, REMUNERATION AND NOMINATION EE2RiEZZEESHERKE
COMMITTEES’ MEETINGS, GENERAL XE2Z2HFEL
MEETINGS
Audit Remuneration Nomination  Annual
Board Committee Committee Committee  General
Meetings  Meetings Meeting Meeting Meeting
EER BREET HHWEET REEET RFRBEE
ERER EE] CE] CE] XE
Total number of meetings held AEENEI EHEH 4 2 1 1 1
during the Year
Number of meetings attended: R eRRE:
Chairman and Non-executive TEEE
Director BTES
Mr. Du Yunbin HEM LA 2(100%) N/A N/A N/A N/A
(appointed on 1st June, 2015) (M=ZT-RFE~F—HLE) TEHR TEA TEE  TER
Mr. Cai Xifu EHELE 1(100%) N/A N/A N/A N/A
(resigned on 30th April, 2015) (RZE-RFEWA=TRHEE) TEH TEH TER  TEA
Chief Executive Officer and THERE
Executive Director BTEE
Ms. Wang Ying TEut+ 4(100%) N/A 1(100%) 1(100%)  1(100%)
TNE A
Non-executive Director EHITEE
Mr. Xu Shouyi BIBREE 4(100%)  2(100%) 1(100%) N/A  1(100%)
TEHA
Independent Non-executive BULFHTES
Directors
Mr. Cheong Ying Chew Henry o 3B ST A 4(100%) 2(100%) 1(100%) 1(100%)  1(100%)
Mr. Cui Liguo EFIELE 4(100%)  2(100%) 1(100%) 1(100%)  1(100%)
Mr. Zhang Lei RELE 3(75%) 2(100%) 1(100%) 1(100%)  1(100%)
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Profiles of Directors and Senior Management
EEREREEEGN

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Chairman and Non-executive Director

Mr. Du Yunbin, aged 51, joined the Department of Mining and
the
ultimately holding company of the Company, as engineer in 1986 and

Metallurgy of China National Nuclear Corporation (“CNNC"),

has substantial experience in geology and company management. Mr.
Du had served as senior engineer, deputy director of the planning
division, deputy chief engineer and deputy general manager of China
Nuclear Uranium Corporation (F#z&RiMEBREMTAF]) ("CNUC");
deputy general manager of China Uranium Corporation Limited (/
FEHEZ e mEARAGT) ("CUC”); and executive deputy director
of CNNC Department of Geology & Mining (7 B B # /8 S s 2 B
R A A])("CNGM”). Mr. Du currently is the director of CNGM, the
director of China Nuclear Geology (FBl#% T E F) ("CNG"), the
general manager of CNUC, and the general manager of CUC. He is
also a director of Société des Mines d‘Azelik S.A. (“Somina”). CNUC,
CUC, CNG are subsidiaries of CNNC. Mr. Du graduated from Nanjing
University with a bachelor degree in Hydrogeology and Water Resource
Engineering in 1986. He was qualified as a senior research engineer.

Executive Director

Ms. Wang Ying, aged 43, joined CNNC in 2010 and has substantial
experience in finance, management in economy and strategic planning.
Before joining CNNC, Ms. Wang had served the Forecast Department
of Economic and Information Center of Beijing Planning Commission
(Rt Z 4B 5 8078 8 &) as Deputy Director, Hong Yuan
Security Ltd. (RIRBEHR D ERAF]) as Chief Macro-economy
Analyst and Assistant to President, and worked in Research Center
of City Development and Environment of Chinese Academy of Social
Sciences (B4t & I 207 i i 25 R B IRIZEA 3T H0). Ms. Wang had
served the planning department of China Nuclear Energy Technical
Co. Ltd. (PRI AMR A E]) (jointly owned by China Nuclear
Engineering Group Corporation (1 EI1#Z T3 3% % E A F]) » Tsinghua
University (5% KXE) and China General Nuclear Power Group (P&
%% @) as Manager and Assistant to President. During 2007 to 2010,
Ms. Wang was seconded to China Atomic Energy Authority (BB
T Z Z# —7]) and National Energy Administration (KRB E N
B]). Ms. Wang had also served the Operating and Planning Department
of CNNC (R EI#Z T3 &£ E A R]# 2l 2 & HF) as Director and was the
Secretary of China Nuclear Exploration and Design Association (9 [
Z T ¥ &L E). She is also a director of Somina. Ms. Wang
graduated from Beijing Agricultural University with a bachelor degree
in Agricultural Planning and Statistic in 1994. She obtained a doctor
degree in Economic Management from China Agricultural University
in 1999. She also obtained a post doctorate degree in Economy from
Peking University in 2003. She was qualified as a senior economist.
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Profiles of Directors and Senior Management ...
EEREREBEE r o

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Non-executive Director

Mr. Xu Shouyi, aged 58, had served as a director of the audit
department of China Nuclear Energy Industry Corporation (“CNEIC")
and currently is the general manager of Yenaut Industrial Co., Ltd.
("Yenaut”). Both CNEIC and Yenaut are subsidiaries of CNNC. Mr. Xu
has experience in financial audit. Mr. Xu joined CNEIC in 1990 and had
served as deputy director of the audit department of CNEIC. Before
joining CNEIC, Mr. Xu had served as finance manager of it RS
BERAMRAR. Mr. Xu graduated from Beijing Open University and
is qualified as a senior accountant.

Independent Non-executive Director

Mr. Cheong Ying Chew Henry, aged 68, currently serves as an
Executive Director & Deputy Chairman of Worldsec Limited, a company
listed on the London Stock Exchange. Mr. Cheong also serves as
an independent non-executive director of Cheung Kong (Holdings)
Limited (stock code: 0001), Hutchison Telecommunications Hong Kong
Holdings Limited (stock code: 215), New World Department Store
China Limited (stock code: 825), Greenland Hong Kong Holdings
Limited (formerly known as “SPG Land (Holdings) Limited”) (stock
code: 337), Cheung Kong Infrastructure Holdings Limited (stock code:
1038), TOM Group Limited (stock code: 2383), Skyworth Digital
Holdings Limited (stock code: 751), all being companies listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. He is also an independent
non-executive director of Creative Energy Solutions Holdings Limited
(stock code: 8109), and was an independent non-executive director
of Hong Kong Jewellery Holding Limited (formerly known as “Excel
Technology International Holdings Limited”) (stock code: 8048), all
being companies listed on the GEM Board of the Stock Exchange. He
is an independent director of BTS Group Holdings Public Company
Limited, a Company listed on The Stock Exchange of Thailand. Mr.
Cheong has over 35 years of experience in securities industry. He
is also a member of the Securities and Futures Appeals Tribunal, a
member of the Advisory Committee of the Securities and Futures
Commission and was previously a member of the Disciplinary Panel A
of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Cheong
holds a Bachelor of Science (Mathematics) degree from Chelsea
College, University of London and a Master of Science (Operational
Research and Management) degree from Imperial College, University
of London.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Independent Non-executive Director (ontinued)

Mr. Cui Liguo, aged 46, is currently a partner of Guantao Law Firm,
a law firm in Beijing, PRC. He has been practicing law since 1993.
Mr. Cui founded Guantos Law Firm in 1994. He has over 20 years of
experience in legal sector. Mr. Cui is also an independent non-executive
director of APT Satellite Holdings Ltd. (stock code: 01045), a company
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, an independent
director of China National Software & Service Co., Ltd. (91 B 21 {4 &
B it BR 7% A% 19 B BR 2 A1) (stock code: 600536), a company listed on
the Shanghai Stock Exchange, and SUFA Technology Industry Co.,
Ltd., CNNC (FZE BB E XM AR AR (stock code: 000777),
a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange. He is also a
member of the Finance & Securities Committee of All China Lawyers
Association; a vice general secretary of the Chamber of Financial Street;
and the legal counselor in the internal control group of securities
issuing of Guodu Securities Co., Ltd., Bohai Securities Co., Ltd. And
China Investment Securities Co., Ltd. Mr. Cui was an independent
director of UBS SDIC Fund Management Co., Ltd. (BI#& R E S &
# AR AR, SDIC Xinji Energy Co., Ltd. (B FEEBERMHDERE R
Al) (stock code: 6019189), a company listed on the Shanghai Stock
Exchange and Beijing Navinfo Co., Ltd. (1t & PO 4 B %7 B & R 1D B BR
A A]) (stock code: 002405), a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange. Mr. Cui graduated from the China University of Political
Science and Law with a bachelor degree in laws in 1991. He also holds
a master degree in laws from the same university.

Mr. Zhang Lei, aged 46, currently serves as assistant of general
manager of Beijing Zhongguancun Dajie Securities sales department
of China Great Wall Securities Co., Ltd. (K EFR D ER A F),
a company Mr. Zhang joined since 1994. Mr. Zhang has over 20
years of experience in the securities industry. Mr. Zhang graduated
from Renmin University of China in 1996, major in commercial
and economic management. Mr. Zhang holds the qualification of
settlement practitioner granted by Beijing Stock Exchange.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Gao Shangxiong, aged 50, was appointed as the vice general
manager of the Company with effect from 1st July, 2015 and is in
charge of the project development and investment of the Company.
Mr. Gao joined the division of safety and environment protection
of CNUC in 1994. Before Mr. Gao joined the Company as senior
manager in the project development and investment division in 2012,
he had been manager of CNUC and CUC. Mr. Gao has obtained a
bachelor degree and a master degree in mining engineering from
Baotou Iron and Steel Institute and Beijing Science and Technology
University respectively. Mr. Gao is also a non-executive director of
Langer Heinrich Uranium (Proprietary) Limited, an uranium resources
company 25% interest of which is held by CNNC Overseas Uranium
Holding Limited, the immediate holding company of the Company.

Mr. Li Philip Sau Yan, aged 57, is the Company Secretary and
Financial Controller of the Company. Mr. Li joined the Company in
November 2008. He had over 30 years of experience in auditing,
accounting and financial management. Mr. Li is an associate member
of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales
and a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Mr. Li is a graduate of Imperial College of the University
of London and holds a Bachelor of Science degree.
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The directors present their annual report and the audited consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31st December, 2015 (the
“Year").

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The activities
of the Company’s principal subsidiaries, an associate and a joint
operation are set out in notes 33, 15 and 16 to the consolidated
financial statements. The market and business review are set out in
the “Management Discussion and Analysis” section.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on page
35.

The directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend for the
Year.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in the property, plant and equipment of
the Group during the Year are set out in note 13 to the consolidated
financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital are set out in
note 24 to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31st December, 2015, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution amounted to approximately HK$474,479,000.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the Year and up to the date of
this report were:

Chairman and non-executive director
Mr. Du Yunbin (appointed with effect from 1st June, 2015)
Mr. Cai Xifu (resigned on 30th April, 2015)

Executive director
Ms. Wang Ying

Non-executive director
Mr. Xu Shouyi

Independent non-executive directors
Mr. Cheong Ying Chew Henry

Mr. Cui Liguo

Mr. Zhang Lei
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nirlPGmI'S' nellﬂﬂ (continued)
EERBREEw

In accordance with Article 95 and Article 112 of the Articles of
Association of the Company, Mr. Du Yunbin, Ms. Wang Ying and Mr.
Cui Liguo will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election
at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

All independent non-executive directors had entered into a service
contract with the Company for a term of three years commencing 12th
November, 2014. Ms. Wang Ying has renewed the service contract
with the Company for another term of three years commencing 1st
April, 2016. The abovementioned service contracts shall continue
thereafter until terminated by either party giving to the other party
not less than three months prior written notice.

The term of office of each of the non-executive directors is the
period from his appointment to the time of retirement by rotation in
accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company.

SERVICE CONTRACTS OF DIRECTORS

None of the directors has a service contract with the Company or
any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group within
one year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

At 31st December, 2015, none of the directors nor their associates had
any shares or underlying shares of the Company and its associated
corporations, as recorded in the register maintained by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(the “SFO"), or as otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant
to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Companies.

SHARE OPTIONS

The share option scheme adopted on 11th December, 2002 (“2002
11th
December, 2012. A new share option scheme was adopted by the
Company on 3rd June, 2013 (“2013 Share Option Scheme”) and
its particulars are set out in note 26 to the consolidated financial

Share Option Scheme”) was expired and terminated on

statements. No share option had been granted under the 2002 Share
Option Scheme and 2013 Share Option Scheme since their adoption.
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EERBEE»

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than as disclosed under the section headed “SHARE OPTIONS”
above, at no time during the Year was the Company or any of its
holding companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any
arrangements to enable the directors of the Company to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of,
the Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No contracts of significance to which the Company or any of its
holding companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party and
in which a director of the Company had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the VYear.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

At 31st December, 2015, the register of substantial shareholders
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO
shows that the following shareholders had notified the Company of
relevant interests and short positions in the issued share capital of the
Company.

Long positions
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each of the Company
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Percentage of
Number of the issued share

issued ordinary  capital of the

Name of shareholder Capacity shares held Company
FifsE 1T EXATSHBT

IR & 5% TR EE BAETSLL

CNNC Overseas Uranium Holding Limited Corporate interest 326,372,273 66.72%

("CNNC Overseas”) (Note)

RiZE N EERBR AT (F &8N (&) NGIE: 5

China Uranium Corporation Limited (“CUC") (Note) Corporate interest 326,372,273 66.72%

A B B A8 S i 2 R A RD (TB A 8 1) (B 53) NGIE: ¥

China National Nuclear Corporation (“CNNC") (Note) Corporate interest 326,372,273 66.72%

hEZTESEE QR (PzEE])HE) AL

Note:  CNNC Overseas is the immediate holding company of the Company, which is wholly owned
by CUC, whereas CUC is wholly owned by CNNC.

Other than as disclosed above, the Company has not been notified

of any other relevant interests or short positions in the issued share
capital of the Company as at 31st December, 2015.
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PURCHASE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SHARES

During the Year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed shares.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
On 23rd April, 2013, the Company (for itself and on behalf of each
of its subsidiaries) entered into the Framework Agreement with CNNC
(for itself and on behalf of each of its subsidiaries, where applicable)
in relation to supply of uranium products, engagement of CNNC's
technical support services and other administrative support services.
The transactions contemplated under the Framework Agreement
constitute continuing connected transactions of the Company under
Chapter 14A of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”). Details of the continuing
connected transactions were set out in the Company’s announcement
and circular dated 24th April, 2013 and 15th May, 2013 respectively
and the continuing connected transactions for the Year were disclosed
in note 31(iv) to the consolidated financial statements (the “Disclosed
Continuing Connected Transaction(s)”).

The aggregate annual values of the Disclosed Continuing Connected
Transactions have not exceeded the maximum aggregate annual
values of relevant amount disclosed in the announcement and circular
dated 24th April, 2013 and 15th May, 2013 respectively made by the
Company in respect of each of the continuing connected transactions
with terms as follow.

The Company’s Independent Non-executive Directors have reviewed
the Disclosed Continuing Connected Transactions as mentioned
above and have confirmed that the Disclosed Continuing Connected
Transactions have been entered into:-

(1) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(2)  on normal commercial terms or better; and

(3) according to the Framework Agreement governing them on
terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Company’s shareholders as a whole.
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The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Assurance Engagements 3000 ‘Assurance Engagements
Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information’ and
with reference to Practice Note 740 ‘Auditor’s Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules’ issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor
has issued his unqualified letter containing his findings and conclusion
in respect of the Disclosed Continuing Connected Transactions. A copy
of the auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

In accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu reported their conclusions to the Board that in respect of
the Disclosed Continuing Connected Transactions:-

(1) nothing has come to their attention that causes them to believe
that the Disclosed Continuing Connected Transactions have not
been approved by the Board;

(2)  for transactions involving the provision of goods or services by
the Group, nothing has come to their attention that causes them
to believe that the transactions were not, in all material respects,
in accordance with the pricing policies of the Group;

(3)  nothing has come to their attention that causes them to believe
that the Disclosed Continuing Connected Transactions were not
entered into, in all material respects, in accordance with the
relevant agreements governing such transactions; and

(4)  with
Continuing Connected Transactions,

respect to the aggregate amount of the Disclosed
nothing has come to
their attention that causes them to believe that the Disclosed
Continuing Connected Transactions have exceeded the maximum
aggregate annual value disclosed in the previous announcement
dated 24th April, 2013 made by the Company in respect of the
Disclosed Continuing Connected Transactions.

The Disclosed Continuing Connected Transactions disclosed in note

31(iv), (vi) and (vii) have compiled with the requirements of the Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.
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nirlPGmI'S' nellﬂﬂ (continued)
EERBREEw

APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-
executive directors, an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all
of the independent non-executive directors are independent.

RELATIONSHIP WITH SUPPLIERS,
CUSTOMERS, EMPLOYEES AND OTHER
STAKEHOLDERS

The Group understands the importance of maintaining a good
relationship with its suppliers, customers, employees and other
stakeholders to meet the Group’s immediate and long-term goals.
Although there are no major customers and suppliers during the
Year, the Group intends to seek and negotiate with major uranium
product traders in the market with a view to expand its supplier and
customer base. The Company creates a framework for motivating staff
and an formal communication channel in order to maintain healthy

relationships with its employees and other stakeholders.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by
the Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit, qualifications
and competence.

The emoluments of the directors of the Company are recommended
by the Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Company’s
operating results, individual performance and comparable market
statistics.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an incentive to
directors and eligible employees, details of which are set out in note
26 to the consolidated financial statements.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

The Group is committed to the long term sustainability of the
environment and communities in which it operates. The Group is
engaged in uranium resources business and one of its main objectives
is to become an environment friendly corporation. Minimizing in
consumption of resources and adopt of environmental best practices
across the Group’s businesses are the commitment of the Group
to conserve and improve the environment. The Group shall make
every endeavour to comply with laws and regulations regarding
environmental protection and adopt effective measures to achieve
efficient use of resources, energy saving and waste reduction.
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE RELEVANT LAWS
AND REGULATIONS

The Group is committed to complying with the requirements under

the Companies Law (Revised) under the laws of Cayman Islands, the
Listing Rules, the Companies Ordinance and the SFO under the laws
of Hong Kong. The subsidiaries in Mongolia are also committed to
complying with the requirements under the Law of Mongolia.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association of the Company, or the laws of the Cayman Islands, which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis
to existing shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout the
Year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Articles of Association of the Company provide that every Director
is entitled to be indemnified out of the assets and profits of the
Company against all losses or liabilities which he/she may sustain
or incur in or about the execution of the duties of his/her office
or otherwise in relation thereto. The Company has taken out and
maintained directors’ liability insurance throughout the Year, which
provides appropriate cover for the Directors and directors of the
subsidiaries of the Company.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting to re-
appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as the auditor of the
Company.

On behalf of the Board

Du Yunbin
Chairman

Hong Kong, 22nd March, 2016
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BIARHASRE

Deloitte.
=)

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF CNNC INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of CNNC
International Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 35 to 89, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31st December,
2015, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity
and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and
for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms
of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance with
Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements are free from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating

the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the financial position of the Group as at 31st December,
2015, and of the Group’s financial performance and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
22nd March, 2016
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
GeEnRAMZEWRER

For the year ended 31st December, 2015
HE-ZT—AF+-A=1+—HBLEFE

2015 2014
—E-EF —ZT—mF
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
B o BETRT BT
Revenue WA 5 57,755 520,380
Cost of sales 8 & AR (56,170) (480,997)
Gross profit EH 1,585 39,383
Other income, gains and losses HEm A Wz K EE 7 4,792 5,954
Administrative expenses 1T (18,363) (21,196)
Impairment loss on amount JE W Bk i A A 5RIB 2
due from an associate B & 1 (72,898) —
Share of loss of an associate LBt 2 AR 2 BB (135,715) (180,364)
Loss before taxation B %4 Al &5 18 9 (220,599) (156,223)
Taxation 18 10 — (174)
Loss for the year FANEE (220,599) (156,397)
Other comprehensive Hitv2mE (X))
(expense) income
Item that will not be reclassified to T EEH 7 EE B
profit or loss ZHEH
Exchange differences arising on RERZEINEREEZ
translation to presentation currency VE W =58 (112) 22
Total comprehensive expense for the year ZNAR]#EH A BIEE A
attributable to owners of the Company &2 X 458 (220,711) (156,375)
Loss per share Bk EE
— Basic — EK (HK45.1 cents)  (HK32.0 cents)
12 (A %a5.110) (7 #3201l
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

GEMBRAR

At 31st December, 2015
RZE—RAF+=ZA=+—H

2015 2014
—E—-AF & — [ 4F
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5% EETT BT
Non-current assets FERBE E
Property, plant and equipment Yz BERFZE 13 20,533 23,002
Exploration and evaluation assets R KT h & E 14 205,786 203,469
Interest in an associate »n “M’\TZEﬁn 15 — 135,715
Amount due from an associate JrE L BE 2 A |) SR IR 19 — 70,839
226,319 433,025
Current assets mEEE
Inventories A 17 29,158 85,345
Other receivables and prepayments H {th & I /TAIED{&
a5 18 4,461 103,546
Bank balances and cash RAT %ﬁ%&fﬁi\ 20 348,778 210,579
382,397 399,470
Current liabilities MBI AR
Other payables and accruals E i S RIE A R B AT
RK 21 16,281 14,767
Amount due to immediate FEN B #E R AFRIA
holding company 22 — 5,157
Amount due to intermediate FES RN ERR A A 5K IE
holding company 22 1,596 1,756
Amount due to ultimate JE AT B 4% 138 iR
holding company 22 1,473 91
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries FERNRSRNEAF
A 22 121 768
Income tax payable B FTS 19,360 19,360
38,831 41,899
Net current assets mEEEFE 343,566 357,571
Net assets BEFE 569,885 790,596
Capital and reserves N SR
Share capital fig 7R 24 4,892 4,892
Reserves f# 564,993 785,704
Equity attributable to owners of the AN E#H A FE(h =
Company 569,885 790,596
The consolidated financial statements on pages 35 to 89 were #35Z89H v A4 AMBREDN T —N4F

approved and authorised for issue by the Board of directors on 22nd

March, 2016 and are signed on its behalf by:

Du Yunbin
it E

DIRECTOR
EF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
GEEXETR

For the year ended 31st December, 2015
HE-FT—AF+t-A=+—HLEHFE

Non-
Share Share Capital distributable Merger Translation Accumulated
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Total
BEx BRHriEE BEXAEE FTISRGE SUGHE iE 5 fk Batksi8 CES
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BETR BETFT B¥ETT BT T BT T BT T
(Note 24) (Note 25) (Note 25) (Note 25)
(Bt =£24) (Fft 7 25) (Bt 7£25) (B 7 25)
At 1st January, 2014 R=-—ZE—=F—H—H 4,892 868,805 80,827 16,584 127 8,389 (32,653) 946,971
Loss for the year FRER — — — — — — (156,397) (156,397)
Exchange differences arising BMEMREEZ
on translation I 5% =5 — — — — — 22 — 22
Total comprehensive income FRE2EBA(FHX)
(expense) for the year R — — — — — 22 (156,397) (156,375)
At 31st December, 2014 R=-T—mF
+=—A=+—A” 4,892 868,805 80,827 16,584 127 8,411 (189,050) 790,596
Loss for the year FRER — — — — — — (220,599) (220,599)
Exchange differences arising on B FTE 4+ 2
translation [E 5 =% — — — — — (112) — (112)
Total comprehensive expense FRNE2EMX
for the year BE — — — = = (112) (220,599) (220,711)
At 31st December, 2015 R=-T—HF
+=—A=+—A 4,892 868,805 80,827 16,584 127 8,299 (409,649) 569,885
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For the year ended 31st December, 2015
HE-ZT—AF+-A=1+—HBLEFE

2015 2014
—E—-AF & — [ 4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
EETT BT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES REXEK
Loss before taxation bR B Bl B 4R (220,599) (156,223)
Adjustments for: R
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment #1% - BME KL X &I E 2,589 4,281
Allowance for inventories FEEE 1,109 8,566
Interest income FEMA (3,898) (3,741)
Share of loss of an associate JE A Bt ’“TZJEH B 135,715 180,364
Impairment loss on amount due from an JE W Bt i A A RIE 2
associate BE B R 72,898 —
Gain on disposal of property, LEME - BERZE
plant and equipment & (6) —
Operating cash flows before movements in LEESEBR 2
working capital KEBEME (12,192) 33,247
Decrease in inventories FE® D 55,061 4,898
Decrease (increase) in other receivables e E 5 R 3 & B e Uk
and prepayments FKIE LA I T8 A 508
A (FEn) 99,047 (99,352)
Decrease in amount due from an associate JE LBt & A &) 50 IBDR — 20,197
Increase (decrease) in other payables and accruals £ fth f& 1~ 3 18 M&JEEJF
RFRIE O ) 1,603 (12,033)
NET CASH FROM (USED IN) OPERATING (RE)KBEREEFZ
ACTIVITIES IR © H 143,519 (53,043)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REEH
Interest received B F A 1,844 2,324
Proceeds from disposal of property, LHEME BMERKHEHZ
plant and equipment Fr % 538 77 —
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEME JFﬁbE%& ] (204) (216)
Additions of exploration and evaluation assets R E B FE LT HE E (2,433) (4,878)
Loan to an associate EIRRNGIE R 3 N = =N — (33,678)
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES RERBEESH 2HE TR (716) (36,448)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash FIOWS ..o
GEREFKER

For the year ended 31st December, 2015
HE-FT—AF+t-A=+—HLEHFE

2015 2014
—E—-AF —ZT—HF
HK$'000 HK$'000
EETT BT T
FINANCING ACTIVITIES B &R E
(Repayment to) advance from intermediate (BB)RBHPRNIZERAF
holding company LB (160) 168
(Repayment to) advances from fellow subsidiaries (f83&) 7k & R & X K & A &
Z B (647) 744
(Repayment to) advance from immediate (ER) KRB HARIERA A
holding company 2R (5,157) 5,157
Advance from ultimate holding company REZBRIERRARZBK 1,382 91
NET CASH (USED IN) FROM (BE)RERMEBEES 2
FINANCING ACTIVITIES REFHE (4,582) 6,160
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH ReERREEEY
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS o CF ) % & 138,221 (83,331)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS BROUGHT EAREERRESEFEY
FORWARD 210,579 293,898
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES ShEE R B &) v & (22) 12
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS RekBEaEFEMES -
CARRIED FORWARD, represented by bank BIRITAE R R IR & 4 K
balances and cash 348,778 210,579

2015 Annual Report —Z—HFEFH 39



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GaMBmRME

For the year ended 31st December, 2015
HE-ZT—AF+-A=1+—HBLEFE

40

GENERAL

CNNC International Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated
as an exempted company with limited liability in the Cayman
Islands under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands and its
shares have been listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The Company’s immediate holding company is CNNC Overseas
Uranium Holding Limited (“CNNC Overseas”), a company
incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability. In the opinion
of the directors of the Company, the Company’s intermediate
holding company and ultimate holding company is China
Uranium Corporation Limited and A B4z T % % @ A 7] (China
National Nuclear Corporation “CNNC"), a state-owned entity in
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"), respectively.

The addresses of the registered office and principal place
of business of the Company are disclosed in the “Corporate
Information” section of the annual report.

The functional currency of the Company is United States dollars
("US$"). The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$") for the convenience of the
shareholders, as the Company is listed in Hong Kong.

The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries
(hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Group”) are
exploration and trading of mineral properties.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

In the current year, the Group has applied, for the first time,
the following amendments to Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKAS(s)") and Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRS(s)") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA").

Amendments to HKAS 19 Defined Benefit Plans: Employee

Contributions

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2010-2012 Cycle

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2011-2013 Cycle
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements ...
GEMBRRME

For the year ended 31st December, 2015
HE-ZT—AF+-A=1+—HBLEFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STAN DARDS (Continued)
The application of the new and revised HKFRSs in the current
year has had no material impact on the Group’s financial
performance and positions for the current and prior years and/
or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure Initiative'

Amendments to HKAS 16 Clarification of Acceptable
and HKAS 38 Methods of Depreciation and
Amortisation’
Amendments to HKAS 16 Agriculture: Bearer Plants'
and HKAS 41

Amendments to HKAS 27 Equity Method in Separate
Financial Statements'

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2012-2014 Cycle'

Amendments to HKFRS 10,  Investment Entities: Applying the
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28 Consolidation Exception'

Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets
and HKAS 28 between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture*

Amendments to HKFRS 11 Accounting for Acquisitions of
Interests in Joint Operations'

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments?

HKFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts?

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers?

g Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January, 2016.

2 Effective for first annual HKFRS financial statements beginning on or after 1st January,
2016.

g Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January, 2018.

9 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements ...
GEMBRRME

For the year ended 31st December, 2015
HE-FT—AF+t-A=+—HLEHFE

2.

42

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STAN DARDS (Continued)

The directors anticipate that the application of the new and
revised HKFRSs will have no material impact on the results and
the financial position of the Group.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (“CO").

The disclosure requirements set out in the Listing Rules regarding
annual accounts have been amended with reference to the
provisions of the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap
622) regarding preparation of accounts and directors’ reports
and audits and to streamline with HKFRSs. Accordingly the
presentation and disclosure of information in the consolidated
financial statements for the financial year ended 31st
December, 2015 have been changed to comply with these new
requirements. Comparative information in respect of the financial
year ended 31st December, 2014 are presented or disclosed
in the consolidated financial statements based on the new
requirements. Information previously required to be disclosed
under the predecessor CO or Listing Rules but not under the
new CO or amended Listing Rules are not disclosed in these
consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis. Historical cost is generally based on the
fair value of the consideration given in exchange of goods and

services.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements ...
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For the year ended 31st December, 2015
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the

Company:
o has power over the investee;
o is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its

involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control listed above.

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting rights
of an investee, it has power over the investee when the voting
rights are sufficient to give it the practical ability to direct
the relevant activities of the investee unilaterally. The Group
considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing
whether or not the Group’s voting rights in an investee are
sufficient to give it power, including:

o the size of the Group’s holding of voting rights relative
to the size and dispersion of holdings of the other vote
holders;

o potential voting rights held by the Group, other vote
holders or other parties;

o rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

o any additional facts and circumstances that indicate that
the Group has, or does not have, the current ability to
direct the relevant activities at the time that decisions
need to be made, including voting patterns at previous
shareholders’ meetings.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control
until the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows relating to transactions between members of the
Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Interest in an associate

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but is
not control or joint control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associate are incorporated
in these consolidated financial statements using the equity
method of accounting, except when the investment, or a portion
thereof, is classified as held for sale, in which case it is accounted
for in accordance with HKFRS 5 “Non-current Assets Held for
Sale and Discontinued Operations”. The financial statements
of associate used for equity accounting purposes are prepared
using uniform accounting policies as those of the Group for
like transactions and events in similar circumstances. Under
the equity method, an investment in an associate is initially
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position
at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share
of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the
associate. When the Group’s share of losses of an associate
exceeds the Group's interest in that associate (which includes
any long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the
Group's net investment in the associate), the Group discontinues
recognising its share of further losses. Additional losses are
recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal
or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the
associate.
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GEMBRRME
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (continvea)

An investment in an associate is accounted for using the equity
method from the date on which the investee becomes an
associate. On acquisition of the investment in an associate, any
excess of the cost of the investment over the Group's share
of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of
the investee is recognised as goodwill, which is included within
the carrying amount of the investment. Any excess of the
Group's share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities over the cost of the investment, after reassessment, is
recognised immediately in profit or loss in the period in which
the investment is acquired.

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine whether
it is necessary to recognise any impairment loss with respect to
the Group’s investment in an associate. When necessary, the
entire carrying amount of the investment (including goodwill) is
tested for impairment in accordance with HKAS 36 “Impairment
of Assets” as a single asset by comparing its recoverable amount
(higher of value in use and fair value less costs of disposal)
with its carrying amount. Any impairment loss recognised forms
part of the carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of
that impairment loss is recognised in accordance with HKAS 36
to the extent that the recoverable amount of the investment
subsequently increases.

When a group entity transacts with its associate, profits and
losses resulting from the transactions with the associate are
recognised in the Group’s consolidated financial statements only
to the extent of interests in the associate that are not related
to the Group.

Interest in a joint operation

A joint operation is a joint arrangement whereby the parties
that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the
assets, and obligations for the liabilities, relating to the joint
arrangement. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing
of control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions
about the relevant activities require unanimous consent of the
parties sharing control.
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46

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Interest in a joint operation (continued)

When a group entity undertakes its activities under joint
operation, the Group as a joint operator recognises in relation
to its interest in a joint operation:

o its assets, including its share of any assets held jointly;

o its liabilities, including its share of any liabilities incurred
jointly;

o its revenue from the sale of its share of the output arising

from the joint operation;

o its share of the revenue from the sale of the output by
the joint operation; and

o its expenses, including its share of any expenses incurred
jointly.

The Group accounts for the assets, liabilities, revenues and
expenses relating to its interest in a joint operation in accordance
with the HKFRSs applicable to the particular assets, liabilities,
revenues and expenses.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable for
goods sold in the normal course of business, net of returns and
sales related taxes.

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised when goods are
delivered and title has been passed.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group
and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest
income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal
outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is
the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts
through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s
net carrying amount on initial recognition.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held for use
in the production or supply of goods or services, are stated
in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost,
less subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment less their residual values over
their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method. The
estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method
are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect
of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to
arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising
on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and
equipment is determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised
in profit or loss.

Exploration and evaluation assets

Exploration and evaluation assets are recognised at cost on
initial recognition. Subsequent to initial recognition, exploration
and evaluation assets are stated at cost less any accumulated
impairment losses.

Exploration and evaluation assets include the cost of exploration
rights and the expenditure incurred in the search for natural
resources as well as the determination of the technical feasibility
and commercial viability of extracting those resources.

When the technical feasibility and commercial viability of
extracting natural resources become demonstrable, previously
recognised exploration and evaluation assets are reclassified as
either intangible assets or property, plant and equipment. These
assets are assessed for impairment before reclassification, and
any impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss.
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48

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term, except where another
systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in
which economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed.

Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the
Group assesses the classification of each element as a finance
or an operating lease separately based on the assessment as
to whether substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of each element have been transferred to the Group
unless it is clear that both elements are operating leases, in
which case the entire lease is classified as an operating lease.
Specifically, the minimum lease payments (including any lump-
sum upfront payments) are allocated between the land and the
building elements in proportion to the relative fair values of the
leasehold interests in the land element and building element of
the lease at the inception of the lease.

When the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably between
the land and building elements, the entire lease is generally
classified as a finance lease and accounted for as property, plant
and equipment.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the entity’s
functional currency (foreign currencies) are recognised at the
rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At
the end of each reporting period, monetary items denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at
that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in
a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they arise.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

For the purposes of presenting consolidated financial statements,
the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign operations are
translated into the presentation currency of the Group (i.e. HK$)
using exchange rates prevailing at the end of each reporting
period. Income and expense items are translated at the average
exchange rates for the period, unless exchange rates fluctuate
significantly during that period, in which case the exchange rates
at the dates of the transactions are used. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity under the heading of translation reserve.

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the
Group's entire interest in a foreign operation, a disposal involving
loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation,
or a partial disposal of an interest in a joint arrangement or
an associate that includes a foreign operation of which the
retained interest becomes a financial asset), all of the exchange
differences accumulated in equity in respect of that operation
attributable to the owners of the Company are reclassified to
profit or loss.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready
for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those
assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for
their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to retirement benefit schemes are recognised as an
expense when employees have rendered services entitling them
to the contributions.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the profit or
loss because of items of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group’s current tax is calculated using tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used
in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities
are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary difference to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from the initial recognition of assets and liabilities in
a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
an associate, and interest in a joint operation, except where
the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising
from deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments and interests are only recognised to the extent that
it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against
which to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and
they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available
to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (continvea)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability
is settled or the asset realised, based on the tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Costs of inventories are calculated using the weighted
average method. Net realisable value represents the estimated
selling price for inventories less all estimated costs necessary to
make the sale.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group entity
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
(other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair
value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate,
on initial recognition.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified as loans and
receivables. The classification depends on the nature and
purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the time of
initial recognition.

BEB R

BilE
REBEEERBBEREHINEES
EHEREEHBER N ETE
WRBEBERSHRICEMKEL
ERMmzRE(RBE)TE

BEHRBERBREEHERRAE
EEMR RSB RRE R EE A E
REEEEES FRISEMES BB
ER

BIE MR E R A R8s A RER - BRIF
E?ﬁ%ﬂﬁ’\‘ﬁ{miﬁuikiﬁzﬁ&ﬁéﬁﬁ
AERZER  EZBERTEH MR
ERIBT D RINE M 2K AR EE
R -

ﬁ»{b
FERRARAZRFERIEED
fR - BERANANMBEFIGEFE - 7]
ERFERTFEZAEHEEERME
ETHEZBATABRA -

eMIR
TREERCRAENEEERNXR
TEANBRXZAIO N KREREWH

R RHER

TREELRERABN P IRAFERT
%Wﬁl%ﬁi%"é%ﬁﬁ?&%%ﬂﬁﬁ
(BAFEAABEGZZEREERS

E1ﬂf9\\)2§&ﬁfﬁx%}i$ﬁéfm%ﬁ
BRABTATREEXESRABZA
FEZEEFMEERBRME)

EHEE

$’§IZiF¢ﬂ1§F DA E R R R
DHEBAREREEZHERAE

E’U&E@%ﬂiﬁ@iﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁf °

2015 Annual Report —Z—HEFH 91
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GEMBRRME

For the year ended 31st December, 2015
HE-ZT—AF+-A=1+—HBLEFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
Financial instruments (continvea)
Financial assets (continued)
Effective interest method
The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter period to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. Loans and receivables (including other receivables,
amount due from an associate and bank balances) are measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less
any identified impairment losses (see accounting policy on
impairment of financial assets below).

Impairment of loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are assessed for indicators of impairment
at the end of the reporting period. Loans and receivables are
considered to be impaired when there is objective evidence that,
as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition, the estimated future cash flows have been affected.

Objective evidence of impairment could include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty;
or
. breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in

interest or principal payments; or

o it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements ...
GEMBRRME

For the year ended 31st December, 2015
HE-ZT—AF+-A=1+—HBLEFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of loans and receivables (continued)

For certain categories of loans and receivables, such as trade
receivables, assets are assessed for impairment on a collective
basis even if they were assessed not to be impaired individually.
Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables
could include the Group's past experience of collecting payments
and observable changes in national or local economic conditions
that correlate with default on receivables.

The amount of impairment loss recognised is the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value
of the estimated future cash flows, discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the loans and receivables is reduced
by the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade receivables, where the carrying amount is
reduced through the use of an allowance account. When a trade
receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written off against the
allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off are credited against the allowance account. Changes
in the carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised
in profit or loss.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss to
the extent that the carrying amount of the asset at the date the
impairment is reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost
would have been had the impairment not been recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group
entity are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in
accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements
and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements ...
GEMBRRME

For the year ended 31st December, 2015
HE-ZT—AF+-A=1+—HBLEFE

3.

o4

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (continvea)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(Continued)

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by a group entity are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial liability, or, (where appropriate), a shorter period, to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities including other payables and amounts
due to immediate holding company, intermediate holding
company, ultimate holding company and fellow subsidiaries are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method.

Derecognition
The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable is recognised in profit or
loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when,
the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or they expire.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial
liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is
recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements ...
GEMBRRME

For the year ended 31st December, 2015
HE-FT—AF+t-A=+—HLEHFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment losses

Tangible assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible assets to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent
of the impairment loss (if any).

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for
which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less than
its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced
to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of
its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Exploration and evaluation assets

The carrying amount of the exploration and evaluation assets
is reviewed annually and adjusted for impairment in accordance
with HKAS 36 “Impairment of Assets” whenever one of the
following events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying amount may not be recoverable (the list is not
exhaustive):

o the period for which the Group has the right to explore
in the specific area has expired during the period or
will expire in the near future, and is not expected to be
renewed,;

o substantive expenditure on further exploration for and
evaluation of mineral resources in the specific area is
neither budgeted nor planned;

FEEFBER

BEEE

FHEE

REBEHR AEBBRHRERE
EZREM UEERSEERTH
EAMREBBTR - G E[LE
PR BYZEEZATYRESET I
fi &t - A€ T 8 5 (5 9B 2 12 (1
A) -

A B £ R T E R EH & AR AR B
REEZRAZEE - R HERE
B B RKRAESREGRARR
BRMSHEREREEREERTE
Rz FEZHABBRERMIREALR
BEE RITERLHRARRASTE
ZEETTFIARE -

W& —REEZATRE S BEFHER
HEEMEE AMIZBEEEZREENR
MEHRAIWE SR - BEBRIER
BaAER -

HWREREBREBRE  EBEZK@
ERRARERLETZEAAIRE S
AR ZEEENAISREZEER
BEFEREBRREISAEEZ
AREE - BB REBENIRERE
mAER e

By IR R GF 15 8 &
WREFIBEEZRAEEFHER
A YRHBBRTIHNEHXFRECR
FREEXRTEKROEE  ZREES
HERIF365E B E 2R E ] F LR E
(5 A pe R %) ¢

o  AKENEEREHRERBRE
ERFERTHER - XEHT

SES:

s HE-—FHREKIGFERERE
EERZARERXBRERE 7T
ERE

2015 Annual Report —Z—HEEH 99



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements ...
GEMBRRME

For the year ended 31st December, 2015
HE-FT—AF+t-A=+—HLEHFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Impairment losses (continued)

Exploration and evaluation assets (continued)

o exploration for and evaluation of mineral resources in the
specific area have not led to the discovery of commercially
viable quantities of mineral resources and the Group has
decided to discontinue such activities in the specific area;
or

o sufficient data exist to indicate that, although a
development in the specific area is likely to proceed,
the carrying amount of the exploration and evaluation
asset is unlikely to be recovered in full from successful
development or by sale.

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss whenever the
carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY AND JUDGEMENT

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, the directors of the Company are required
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors
that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

The following are the key estimation and assumptions concerning
the future that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets within the next
financial year and critical judgements that the directors have
made in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies
and that have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements ...
GEMBRRME

For the year ended 31st December, 2015
HE-ZT—AF+-A=1+—HBLEFE

4.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY AND JUDGEMENT (continves)
Estimated impairment on exploration and
evaluation assets

Exploration and evaluation assets are assessed for impairment
when facts and circumstances suggest that the carrying amount
may exceed the recoverable amount. As detailed in note 14,
the Group owns a number of exploration licenses included
in exploration and evaluation assets with carrying values of
approximately HK$206 million in Mongolia for uranium mining
which are subjected to the Mongolian’s Law on Nuclear Energy
and Mongolia’s Law on Implementing Procedures of the Law
on Nuclear Energy (collectively referred to as the “New Laws”).
Under the New Laws, the Mongolia Government has right to
take ownership without payments of either not less than 51%
of the equity interest in the Group’s Mongolia subsidiaries if
the Mongolia Government’s funding was used to determine the
resource during exploration, or not less than 34% of the equity
interest in the Group’s Mongolia subsidiaries if the Mongolia
Government'’s funding was not used to determine the resource
during exploration. The Group commenced negotiating with the
relevant Mongolian authorities in respect of the implementation
of the New Laws from 2010 and consensus has been reached
between the Group and the relevant Mongolian authorities
that a joint venture will be established for holding the Group's
mining licenses, which are currently under application, with the
Mongolia Government holding 51% of the equity interest of the
joint venture. Upon the completion of establishment of the joint
venture, the Group’s mining licenses together with the carrying
amount of the Group's exploration and evaluation assets will be
transferred to the joint venture by way of a shareholder loan.
However, the timing of obtaining the mining licenses is uncertain
and if the application of the mining licenses is not approved due
to the New Laws, the Group might incur a significant impairment
loss on the exploration and evaluation assets.

The directors of the Company exercise their judgment in
estimating the recoverable amount with reference to recent
negotiation and consensus with the Mongolian authorities, the
recent legal advice, the arrangement for the Group’s mining
licenses and the assessment of the directors for the fair value
less costs of disposal of the exploration and evaluation assets,
and the directors are of the opinion that no impairment on
the carrying amount of exploration and evaluation assets is
considered necessary. Where the recoverable amount is less than
expected by the directors, a material impairment loss may arise.
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GEMBRRME

For the year ended 31st December, 2015
HE-FT—AF+t-A=+—HLEHFE

5.

REVENUE

Revenue represents the trading income received or receivable for
uranium sold by the Group.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the Group’s executive directors, being
the chief operating decision maker, for the purposes of resource
allocation and assessment of segment performance focuses on
the types of goods or services delivered or provided. The Group
currently organises its operations into two operating divisions,
which also represent the operating segments of the Group for
financial reporting purposes, namely trading of mineral property
and exploration and trading of mineral properties. They represent
two major lines of business engaged by the Group. The Group’s
operating and reportable segments under HKFRS 8 are as

follows:

o Trading of mineral — trading of uranium
property

o Exploration and trading — exploration and trading of

of mineral properties uranium

The following is an analysis for the Group’s revenue and
results from continuing operations by reportable and operating
segment:

For the year ended 31st December, 2015

e A
WABASE L EMERZ D KHIE
WEBEWA -

S EHEF
RETERIE RS BRBEFFEMA
TREERRANETEEBRTES)
ER2ER  ETEETENEZER
et 2 RIE A - NEE B AT E
2EINRMESERY  TRERA
SERMBEHREMSEADZZEEDH -
DRARBERENEARDREEE
BEVE BHEIBAERAKELS
ZMEEBRINER AEEREE
B RS ER R 22 EMERD
AT -

. ReEmE — EEMH
ES
. BHREEE — BRRESH

AEBREFBLEEB ZRARE
REERREEDS I D 2T

BFE-—FT—2%F
+-—A=+—HILEE

Exploration

Trading of and trading

mineral of mineral
property properties Consolidated

HEmRE BHERREE
L/ ES 1 §-%2ES =&
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$000
EETR EETR EETR
Segment revenue 7 &b WA 57,755 — 57,755
Segment loss HEEE (35,409) (139,737) (175,146)

Unallocated other income and gains 7 2 B¢ 2 £ it I A

Ko g 3,950
Unallocated other expenses Rtz A (36,114)
Central administration costs R R AT B AR (13,289)
Loss before taxation B 75 AT & 1B (220,599)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements ...
GEMBRRME

For the year ended 31st December, 2015
HE-FT—AF+t-A=+—HLEHFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (coninved) 6. ﬁ*liiﬁ*ihm
For the year ended 31st December, 2014 BE-_FT—NF
+-A=+—HLEE

Exploration
Trading of and trading
mineral of mineral
property properties  Consolidated
KERE BRIREE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T BT T
Segment revenue 7 A 520,380 — 520,380
Segment profit (loss) 7 & A (B 1) 38,934 (182,646) (143,712)
Unallocated other income and gains & 2 B2 2 H ft g A
K g 4,733
Central administration costs AR OR AT BB AR (17,244)
Loss before taxation B 5 Bl &S 18 (156,223)
The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same ETRE3FTAL - RE D R Z BETER
as the Group’s accounting policies described in note 3. Segment AEBSFTBERMER - 2804 ﬂ(ﬁiﬂ@)
profit (loss) represents the profit earned (loss incurred) by each g & 59 B P Bk HUR ?'J(Fﬁ?il@ﬁa) '
segment without allocation of interest income, impairment loss TEBEMBWA - EUEE QR KIE
on amount due from an associate and central administration ZRERBREFRITERKARD @E ° It
costs. This is the measure reported to the chief operating T ETEIR S BL R FFE D 8RR M
decision maker for the purposes of resource allocation and MEIBLERRAZSHRZIGAEESR -

assessment of segment performance.
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GEMBRRME

For the year ended 31st December, 2015
HE-FT—AF+t-A=+—HLEHFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continvea) 6.

Segment assets and liabilities
The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities
by reportable and operating segment:

PEBE
NHMEERBE
AEBEENEBGBERERIEE DI
2z oMT:

2015 2014
—E-1f —E-mEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BRI BT T
ASSETS BE
Segment assets DEEE
— Trading of mineral property — ETEEYE 29,158 121,090
— Exploration and trading of — MR REEEE
mineral properties LES 233,478 367,928
262,636 489,018
Unallocated assets RAOBLEE 346,080 343,477
Consolidated assets e BE 608,716 832,495
LIABILITIES BfE
Segment liabilities S EEE
— Exploration and trading of — WRREEEE
mineral properties S 15,470 13,488
Unallocated liabilities AnEREE 23,361 28,411
Consolidated liabilities KeEBaE 38,831 41,899

For the purposes of monitoring segment performance and
allocating resources:

o Segment assets include property, plant and equipment,
exploration and evaluation assets, interest in an associate,
inventories, other receivables, amount due from an
associate and bank balances and cash which are directly
attributable to the relevant reportable segment.

o Segment liabilities include other payables and accruals and
amount due to intermediate holding company which are
directly attributable to the relevant reportable segment.

60 CNNC International Limited "% BEEH B A 7

HRERSBRBELDE D MEERM

il

s INHEEERRHEBERINE
BEREZDE BENIRE  #
KERHEEE RBERRZE
mFE - HMBEKRIE - ER

BRFRIEARRITERKRIR

o

K &

s NHAEEFEHABERSFEE
FEAG 2 A R SRR A R B Rt R
AR NPT ERARRE -
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GEMBRRME

For the year ended 31st December, 2015
HE-FT—AF+t-A=+—HLEHFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (ontinved) 6. FEEF
Other segment information Hith 5 2B & £
2015
—E—-RF
Exploration

Trading of and trading

mineral of mineral
property properties Unallocated Total

HERE BDRERESR
ME WMEWME x5 BL st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
EETRT EEBTRT ERETT BT

Amounts included in the HEDELEL D I
measure of segment results BERTTAZEHE:
or segment assets:

Addition to non-current assets A E 3E i 8) & & — 2,637 — 2,637
Depreciation of property, plant #1% « & 5 & & &

and equipment ZIE — (2,498) 91) (2,589)
Allowance for inventories FEEE (1,109) — — (1,109)
Impairment loss on due from  J& U B & AR5 TH 2

an associate (B &5 1B (36,784) — (36,114) (72,898)
Share of loss of an associate % 1 Bt = A &) &5 18 — (135,715) — (135,715)
Interest income on amount due & W Bk & AT FIE 2

from an associate A2 WA 1,036 — 1,018 2,054

2014
— g F
Exploration

Trading of and trading

mineral  of mineral
property  properties  Unallocated Total
ME BEYE A9 B it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT ABETT BB T BBTT

Amounts included in the AEDMEBELNAE
measure of segment results ERTTAZE5:
or segment assets:

Addition to non-current assets R & IEE B A BE — 5,086 8 5,094
Depreciation of property, plant #1% - B = & & &

and equipment ZE — (4,108) (173)  (4,281)
Allowance for inventories ﬁ‘b%‘{% (8,566) — — (8,566)
Share of loss of an associate % {5 Bt = A &) &5 18 — (180,364) — (180,364)
Interest in an associate REE ez Em — 135,715 — 135,715
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6.

62

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
Geographical information

The Group's revenue by geographical market (irrespective of the
origin of the goods) based on the location of the customers are
detailed below:

DEBEE

ih E & #
WEEEEE D2 A& B i [&
M5 (T E G R i) 2 W A 5 it 70
—|T:

Revenue
[N
2015 2014
—E—AhF —ZT—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
EETR BT T
Hong Kong BB 57,755 520,380
Information about major customer FHAEXEEFREH

The Group's revenue of HK$57,755,000 (2014: HK$520,380,000)
arose from sales of uranium to an independent third party (2014:
sales of uranium to immediate holding company).

The Group’s operation is principally located in the Mongolia
(country of domicile) and the Republic of Niger. Information
about the Group’s non-current assets by geographical location
of the assets is detailed below:

RNEE 2 U A B #57,755,0007C (==
— P4 : B#520,380,0007T) RN EHE
HMERG—UBYLFEF=H(ZZ—M
FHEMERBERIZERAR) -

AEEXZERHE(TELEBRR)M
ERREE - AEBRENRHEE
ZiwREI Dz EEERFHINMT :

Non-current assets

FmENEE
2015 2014
—E—-A%F —E—NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETRT BT T
Mongolia (country of domicile) Sh(EZEEH 226,222 226,283
Hong Kong BB 97 188
Republic of Niger JEB R — 206,554
226,319 433,025

OTHER INCOME, GAINS AND LOSSES

7. Hfpg A - Wriz R E5 18

2015 2014
—E—-AF —E-0F
HK$'000 HK$'000
EETR BT T

Included in other income, gains and losses are E b Ug A + Ug 5 K &5 18

the following: ERBEEAT:

Interest income BB A 3,898 3,741
Commission income el A 52 992
Compensation from a litigation FAREGEZEE 735 1,672
Net exchange gain (loss) PE N Wz (B518) 358 77 (466)
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8. EERESIME

ENKENTEESRITHAE 2 M
o/ N

8. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’
EMOLUMENTS

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the directors and
the chief executive were as follows:

Retirement

Directors’ Salaries and benefit scheme Discretionary

fee allowances contributions bonus Total
BREH
EENE: FEREM i RN B 18 TE AL @zt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
BT BT T BT T BT BETR
For the year ended 31st December, 2015 BE-T-1f+=H
=+—HiLEEE
Executive director: HITEE:
Ms. Wang Ying (Note (i) and (iii)) F 3 2+ (B 3 () K (Gii)) 150 480 24 290 944
Non-executive directors: FHITES:
Mr. Du Yunbin (appointed on 1st June, 2015)  HEWEE(R=F—hF
(Note (i) NA— B EE) (B (D) 200 - — — 200
Mr. Cai Xifu (resigned on 30th April, 2015) EHERERT—RHF
mA=+HEE) — — — — —
Mr. Xu Shouyi RFHEEE 150 — — — 150
Independent non-executive directors: BUFRTES:
Mr. Cheong Ying Chew, Henry R EE 200 — — — 200
Mr. Cui Liguo BB 5t & 200 — — — 200
Mr. Zhang Lei RERE 150 — — — 150
1,050 480 24 290 1,844
For the year ended 31st December, 2014 BE-ZT-Nm&E+=A
=+—HiLEEE
Executive director: BITES:
Ms. Wang Ying (Note (ii) and (iii)) F 2 2z (B & Gi) K Gii)) 150 470 23 320 963
Non-executive directors: FHITES:
Mr. Cai Xifu (Note (ii)) 85 8@ S A& (B R Gi) 200 _ s - 200
Mr. Xu Shouyi BREBREE 150 - — VA 150
Independent non-executive directors: BUFRTES:
Mr. Cheong Ying Chew, Henry REMEE 200 — v _ 200
Mr. Cui Liguo B A B A 200 _ _ = 200
Mr. Zhang Lei RELE 150 4 _ e 150
1,050 470 23 320 1,863

Ms. Wang Ying (2014: Ms. Wang Ying) is also the Chief Executive
of the Company and her emoluments disclosed above include

those for services rendered by her as the Chief Executive.

FRZE(CE-—NF ERLD)NAR

RRFITHRER

B X ER

Bz

e B REERITRMARME RIS

)
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8.

64

DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ 8.
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

Notes:

(i) The director’s fee for Mr. Du Yunbin and Ms. Wang Ying in 2015 are paid or payable
to CNNC Overseas by the Company.

(ii) The director’s fee for Mr. Cai Xifu and Ms. Wang Ying in 2014 were paid or payable
to CNNC Overseas by the Company.

(iii) The executive director’s emoluments shown above for Ms. Wang Ying were mainly
for her services in connection with the management of the affairs of the Company
and the Group.

(iv) The non-executive directors’ emoluments shown above were mainly for their services
as directors of the Company or its subsidiaries.

(v) The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments shown above were mainly for
their services as directors of the Company.

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the
Group, one individual (2014: one individual) was a director of
the Company whose emoluments are included in the disclosure
set out above. The emoluments of the remaining four (2014:
four) individuals were as follows:

EEREEME o
B ot

(i) HEREEREIFRZTN-_FT-AF2ESTH
EHARA XN HE TR EEI -

(i) EHEEERTIRLIRN T —HEZEEN
EHARR XN KB TR EEI -

(iif) NERTERZTZATESME DEBRKE
EEARARAEEEL -

(iv) AEFRBTEEME X BERARA K ENE
RAIZEER -

(v) NEBIFQTEEMEEBERAARAZE
ERH -

AEB 2 hEHERTMHALTH  —F
(ZE—NF:—BALTAEARAE
FHEEZMESFTA XXl 2 HEE o
BTIEA(ZE—MFE: mE) AL 2B
caR UNNE

2015 2014
—g-1f —E-mEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
EETRT BT T
Salaries and other benefits S B & B i 48 A 2,747 3,110
Retirement benefit schemes contributions RIKE FET 8 K 43 62
2,790 3,172
2015 2014
—g-1f —E-mEF
No. of No. of
employee employee
EEAH EEAH
Emoluments of the employees were within the 1& 8 Bl & /7 F T 7
following bands: #H R
Nil to HK$1,000,000 = 7 # #1,000,0007T 3 3
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 75 #£1,000,0017C &
7 #1,500,0007T 1 1

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group
to any of the directors or the five highest paid individuals
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office. None of the directors has waived
any emoluments during the year.

CNNC International Limited A ixBEEAHRE A A
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9.

10.

GAMBREME "
For the year ended 31st December, 2015 ' ‘\5. -
BE-Z-—RF+-_A=+-RILFE @
LOSS BEFORE TAXATION 9. BRR¥iAIEE
2015 2014
—E-1f —E-mEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BRI BT
Loss before taxation has been arrived at B %t A1 &5 18 4 40 BR
after charging (crediting): (GTA) T3 &IE:
Directors’ remuneration (see note 8) EE=M e (R ES8) 1,844 1,863
Other staff costs Hih B T A A 4,960 6,102
Retirement benefit schemes contributions R K AE T &8I 5K
(see note 30) (& Ff 5£30) 73 106
Total staff costs BT A4 6,877 8,071
Less: Amount capitalised in exploration and & : B & & A = #4F &
evaluation assets FHEEZERE (1,337) (1,557)
5,540 6,514
Allowance for inventories FEEEGIAHEE
(included in cost of sales) B 7X) 1,109 8,566
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ¥ % - BE R R #H 2
e 2,589 4,281
Gain on disposal of property, LEWME - BMERZHE
plant and equipment & (6) =
Auditors’ remuneration 1% 1AM B & 1,280 1,506
Cost of inventories recognised as an expense &R &AM 217 & 5k A& 55,061 472,431
Operating lease charges on land and buildings + 3 M F 7 & & H &
4 3,681 3,725
TAXATION 10. H1R
2015 2014
—E-1f —ZE-mEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
EETR BT T
Current tax — PRC enterprise income tax BOEARE T8 — FR B 1b 25
P15 2 — 174

Under the Law of People’s Republic of China on Enterprise

Income Tax (the “EIT Law"”) and Implementation Regulation of

the EIT Law, the tax rate for foreign owned enterprises is 25%

from 1st January, 2008 onwards.

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated

assessable profit for both years.

REBEPEARKMBEEEMEHE (TE
ERBHREDREEMREHREE G
Bl BZZFZENF-—A—BEERRI
BRELFENHER25% °

R 4 [ 2 7 7% T 8B4 12 1 31 18 SR
% I A16.5% 2 B 5 -
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10. TAXATION (Continued) 10. *HIE(/%?)
No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made in the HREEERAREFEHE£H B
consolidated financial statements as the group entities incurred BB BMRGEMBHRRLEELE
tax losses for both years. BRI o
The taxation for the year can be reconciled to the loss before RERZHIAEAR S8 2 & A th 2 E W
taxation per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and mRFITRMATEEERAT

other comprehensive income as follows:

2015 2014
—E—-AF —E—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
EETR BT T
Loss before taxation B Bt A1 & 18 (220,599) (156,223)
Tax at the Hong Kong Profits Tax rate of 16.5% % & /& & 15 5 %16.5%
AEZHRE (36,399) (25,777)
Tax effect of share of loss of an associate JEIGEEE AR EE 2
WG & 22,393 29,760
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax BAERBBA ZH
purpose i (818) (87,178)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax 7~ A] 1% B sz 2 7
purpose BEE 12,459 80,584
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERHBEEEZ
MR E 2,365 2,775
Tax effect of different tax rate of subsidiary RARELEKNEARZ
operating in PRC ENEE YA — 10
Taxation for the year NEEHIE — 174
11. DIVIDENDS 1. KR
No dividends were paid, declared or proposed during the current RAFERBEFEASERNS T
and prior years. The directors have determined that no dividend REREKRE - EZERETSHE
will be paid in respect of the year ended 31st December, 2015. BT At _A=t—HILFEIK

RS -
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i

12. LOSS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic loss per share attributable to the
owners of the Company is based on the following data:

12. BIRES1E
KAEEAREERERARBEEE
BORETIESETE:

2015 2014
—E—-AF —ZT-mF
HK$'000 HK$'000
EETR BT T
Loss for the year attributable to owners of — ANA & #EH A FE1L
the Company FANEE (220,599) (156,397)
2015 2014
—g-HE  —TmF
Number of ordinary shares for the purposes of &t & % & K K # &
loss per share B2 EBKkEA 489,168,308 489,168,308
13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT B.YE BRERERHE
Plant and
machinery
Mining  and other  Furniture and Motor
structure equipment fixtures vehicles Total
BER
HWELR
BELHE HRk REREKE RE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
BT T BET T BET T BETT BETT
CoSsT BX 7R
At 1st January, 2014 RN-_T—NE—-F—H 4,847 46,331 4,432 2,717 58,327
Exchange realignment & H AR 1 7 (6) 1 3
Additions RE — 208 8 — 216
At 31st December, 2014 R-T—ME+=A=+—8 4,848 46,546 4,434 2,718 58,546
Exchange realignment ER R 3) (27) ) M) (33)
Additions NE — 204 — — 204
Disposals HE — = = (480) (480)
At 31st December, 2015 R=F—RF+=A=+—8 4,845 46,723 4,432 2,237 58,237
DEPRECIATION neE
At 1st January, 2014 R-ZZ-—M&E—A—H 1,161 25,914 3,249 935 31,259
Exchange realignment R 1 4 ) 1 4
Provided for the year FERE 106 3,949 100 126 4,281
At 31st December, 2014 RZE-—mFE+=A=+—H 1,268 29,867 3,347 1,062 35,544
Exchange realignment A M) (16) ) M (20)
Provided for the year FEREE 98 2,247 80 164 2,589
Eliminated on disposals o6 B 4 — — — (409) (409)
At 31st December, 2015 RZE-—RF+-A=+—H 1,365 32,098 3,425 816 37,704
CARRYING VALUES FREE
At 31st December, 2015 R=ZE—RF+=A=+—H 3,480 14,625 1,007 1,421 20,533
At 31st December, 2014 R-ZT—NF+=A=+—A 3,580 16,679 1,087 1,656 23,002
2015 Annual Report —Z—HFEEHR 6]
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13.

14.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. Y% - BEREREB»
(Continued)
The above items of property, plant and equipment are EimE BMERZXEER HRAM
depreciated over their estimated useful lives, after taking into STRIE A FE RS ET R A ERIERE
account of their estimated residual value, on a straight-line basis B RESEEATFERFEITE:
at the following rates per annum:
Mining structure 20 to 40 years = A1 20F404F
Plant and machinery and other equipment 6%-20% PR g A R Bt 28 6%-20%
Furniture and fixtures 18%-33% BRI REE 18%-33%
Motor vehicles 18%-25% E 18%-25%
EXPLORATION AND EVALUATION ASSETS 14. Byif R &5 &
HK$'000
BT T
COST DN
At 1st January, 2014 RZZE—MFE—H—H 198,560
Additions NE 4,878
Exchange realignment b X 38 & 31
At 31st December, 2014 R-ZE-—WE+-_HA=+—H 203,469
Additions NE 2,433
Exchange realignment ME H, 8 B (116)
At 31st December, 2015 R—ZE—HF+-_A=+—H 205,786

The Group’s exploration and evaluation assets were mainly
arising from the acquisition of Western Prospector Group Ltd.
during the year ended 31st December, 2009.

On 15th August, 2009, the New Laws came into force. Under
the New Laws, the Mongolia Government has the right to
take ownership without payment of either not less than 51%
of the equity interest in the Group’s Mongolian subsidiaries if
the Mongolia Government’s funding was used to determine
the resource during exploration, or not less than 34% of the
equity interest in the Mongolian subsidiaries if the Mongolia
Government'’s funding was not used to determine the resource
during exploration.

CNNC International Limited A ixBEEAHRE A A
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14. EXPLORATION AND EVALUATION ASSETS

(Continued)

The directors of the Company commenced negotiating with the
relevant Mongolian authorities in respect of the implementation
of various provisions under the New Laws during the year ended
31st December, 2010. Based on management’s discussions with
the relevant Mongolian authorities and the advice from its
Mongolian legal advisers, the Group will have the right to apply
for mining licenses to mine or extract the resources identified
in the relevant areas covered by the exploration licenses. As at
31st December, 2015, included in the exploration and evaluation
assets is an amount of approximately HK$205,786,000 (2014:
HK$203,469,000) of which the Group is currently in the progress
of applying for mining licenses to mine or extract the resources
identified in the relevant areas covered by these exploration
licenses. In the opinion of directors, there is no legal obstacle
for application of such mining licenses. During the year ended
31st December, 2012, consensus has been reached between
the Company and the relevant Mongolian authorities that a
joint venture will be established for holding the mining licences,
which are currently under application, with the Mongolia
Government holding 51% of the equity interest in the joint
venture. Upon the completion of establishment of the joint
venture, the Group’s mining licenses together with the carrying
amount of the Group’s exploration and evaluation assets will
be transferred to the joint venture by way of a shareholder
loan. In addition, the Company has drafted the shareholders’
agreement, joint venture agreement and memorandum and
association of the joint venture and has commenced negotiation
with the detailed terms of these documents with the relevant
Mongolian authorities and a pre-mining cooperation agreement
was signed on 26th June, 2012 to kick off the pre-mining
activities. Previously, a notice was received in January 2014
from the relevant Mongolian authorities which mentioned
that the joint venture would be expected to be established
in 2014. However, the establishment has been postponed
due to changes in government officials of relevant Mongolian
authorities in second half of 2014 and extra time is required by
them to review the draft joint venture agreement. During the
year ended 31st December, 2015, further negotiations on the
terms of the agreement have been carried out and a revised
draft agreement has been provided for Mongolian authorities,
and the finalisation of the joint venture agreement is expected
to be completed by end of 2016. The Group’s exploration and
evaluation assets will be transferred to the joint venture by way
of a shareholder loan upon the completion of establishment of
the joint venture. The Company has continued the negotiation
with the relevant Mongolian authorities and the directors are of
the opinion that the recent changes will not result in significant
impact on the consensus which has been reached previously.
After taking into consideration of consensus being reached and
the recent negotiations with the Mongolian authorities, recent
legal advice, the arrangement for the Group’s mining licenses
and the assessment by the directors of the Company for the fair
value less costs of disposal of the exploration and evaluation
assets, the directors are of the opinion that no impairment on
the carrying amount of exploration and evaluation assets is
considered necessary.

14.

HEREFEEEE»

B2 ZTF+_A=+—HItH
EA ARAEEHEBZHERH
BERFEANTZEGEXERAEE ° R
EEEEREREZOERZmMEH
SHERBEMZER AEEBEE#
ARG ZUARRSHEIRR
& 1R 5 R 35 BRI 2= 2 AE B b 1= P BT
BlzBR RZE—RHE+=_A=1+
—B AEBEAHNERFEHEEFRN
B3 #) 7 #205,786,000T (ZF — =
F : B #£203,469,0007T) 2 EEFR A
a5 EUAFAR KA RZE BT
AR AR E 2 HE & NPT R Bl 2
BER -ZEERA BEZEHETA
BEEREZ B - HE_T—=
FE+-A=+—HILFER  KAQFHE
R EREMBeER LA E D E
EREE A EEERB Z2EES
AFE MEOHNEEEELEER
B2Z51% ° TRKMAZEDER K
EEHARFUIERANEBHZER
TEEEZEEEBSABRRER R
EEEAEME I ARFIEE
BRERRHGZ a2 EHaUAREE
TEBABERAARER BB
HERMZREXHZFRAERERE
o WRE——FRNA T NARE
RER A EHZE - UNARZERER
EH) c REBEMN-_Z—MFE—A
EEBREEERBHZBM  EF
REAECEBHREN T —TUEK
Yoo R AEBMERGERZEBNES
RZZE—NFETHF<FHREAT T2
HIINSHEHNERAECEHE - B
BE-_ZEZ—HRE+-A=+—HILEE
N BXHERE— S ETEEHE
B2 RASEHERERERDE
EHR-_ZE—RNEFETKAEDLER
HFoMNABLERYE  AEBHIF
FFEEEBARRER N EEES
BENE  ANRDHEEEEBESTLE
BER MEFRELHZAHEDT
SYHERERZ LAHEREATE -
CEFHSHERERZ LHRAH
=R EHERER  AEERAKF
ABZEHERARRESHAHER
FTHEEEZATFEBREERES X
RAEMREFTHEEZRAEBELAR
RBEMNE -
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15.

10

INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE 15. REtE AT ZHER
2015 2014
—F-AfF —T—-mF
HK$'000 HK$'000
EETR BT T
Cost of unlisted investment FEMHRE 2 KA 463,865 463,865
Share of post-acquisition losses and other FEAE W 12 5 18 K Hoth
comprehensive income 2 R &= (463,865) (328,150)
Interest in an associate NN o — 135,715
During the year ended 31st December, 2010, the Group AEBRBE_ZE—ZEFT_A=+
acquired 37.2% equity interest in Société des Mines d’Azelik S.A. —AtFEZERARE—BRAEER
(“Somina”) through the acquisition of a subsidiary known as BEAERAR(BREEDZHEAR
Ideal Mining Limited (“Ideal Mining”). At 31st December, 2015, E - Y B& Société des Mines d'Azelik
the Group’s equity interest in Somina is pledged to a bank for A. ([Somina & A1) 237.2% % 7~ #&
certain banking facilities granted to Somina. wmeRZE—RFT_HA=+T—H &

& B 7 Somina A &) 2 % 2N # 25 2 1K 3
¥ R 17 LA B 15 % F Somina A &) Z R 17

EE -
Details of the Group’s associate as at 31st December, 2015 and RZE—RAFRZZF—WNF+ZA=+
2014 are as follows: —B AEEZBEATFBEAT:
Country of Attributable
Name of registration and equity interest Principal
associate operation Paid-up registered capital held by the Group activity
AEE R
BEATEZE HMREBEZER CHREZREZX FEIEIRHE EEX£H
Somina Republic of Niger African Financial Community 37.2% Mining
Franc 500,000,000
Somina‘A &l =) ] 500,000,000 37.2% MEERMEKR
FE M & @b £ [7) B8 0% AP
The summarised financial information of Somina is set out Somina ARl Z AR EZH T -
below. The summarised financial information below represents J«/(Tﬁﬂ‘“é{ﬂ WEZ TR IR B B % W
amounts shown in the associate’s financial statements prepared 5 X BI BT 4R BUE & R R) B 7S 3R & P Y
in accordance with HKFRSs. The associate is accounted for using TZEH REERAYERERTF
the equity method in these consolidated financial statements. T AERE RS AR AR -
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HE-_Z—AF+A=+—RBLFE

15. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (contines 15. REFEAT 2R«
2015 2014
—E-1f —E-mEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BRI BT T
Current assets mENEE 167,891 257,877
Non-current assets FRBEE 1,559,921 2,417,491
Current liabilities mEARE (2,815,164) (2,807,405)
Non-current liabilities FERBEE (614,697) (742,157)
Net liabilities FRE (1,702,049) (874,194)
Revenue WA — 311,987
Loss for the year FREIE (828,522) (447,213)
Other comprehensive income for the year FAHMEE R A 667 7
Total comprehensive expense for the year FRNEEAZ B (827,855) (447,206)
Unrecognised share of loss of an associate for 7 7 BBt = A 7] 2 & 18
the year 172,247 —
Cumulative unrecognised share of loss of an Z &tk D EE S N a2
associate & 18 172,247 —
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to L BERGEERNG S M B RE
the carrying amount of the interest in the associate recognised MR E QA EE 2 REE LSRN
in the consolidated financial statements: T~
2015 2014
—E—4F —E—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
EETR BT T
Net liabilities FEAE (1,702,049) (874,194)
Proportion of the Group’s ownership interest 7 & & B 15 % & #
1 2= L I 37.2% 37.2%
(633,162) (325,200)
Add: Cumulative unrecognised share of m:REr R #H =R
loss of an associate Al ZEE 172,247 —
Premium on acquisition of interest AN RN £
in an associate I B (B 460,915 460,915
— | SEw/alE
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15.

16.

17.

18.

12

INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (continueo) 15. REtEAT 2R«
During the first half of 2015, due to the continued operating RZZ—RFLFF  ARZFRFE
losses suffered over the years, unfavourable market conditions REEE  MEEN M AR %T\%&
for the sale of uranium and insufficient cash flows for repayment RERTRANEEDHRRITER
of outstanding bank borrowings, the production of the associate AR AEEREE D TQEEH/\—I
has been suspended and it is highly uncertain whether the AERRELEFESRETBEM -
associate will resume operation in the foreseeable future. The HENRERERBREBBRARFE
associate has run into serious going concern problem and EEAERERE -
significant loss was incurred during the year.
JOINT OPERATION 16. EEXT
The Group has a joint operation, XXEM LLC. The Group has a REBEE-IHEG EFEEXXEM LLC» &
50% share in the ownership of a power station in Mongolia. SEREEET —HEBEER250%%E
The power station is designed for the provision of power line o ZBEEMEREARASE R AR
support to the Group and the joint arrangement parties. The THITOHFREEESYE - AEBF
Group is entitled to 50% share of the revenue earned and bears BT & & 255 P R BV A 2 50%
50% share of the joint operation’s expenses. EESEER 250% MK °
INVENTORIES 17. 58
2015 2014
—T-AF = — 0
HK$'000 HK$'000
BB BT T
Uranium concentrates & B 29,158 85,345
OTHER RECEIVABLES AND PREPAYMENTS 18. H {th & Wy 3k 18 LA & 78 1
™MmIE
2015 2014
—T-AF —ET-HF
HK$'000 HK$'000
EETR BT T
Other receivables H h f& W SR IE 3,712 102,908
Deposits paid BEfET& 382 401
Prepayments T8 5 5K 18 367 237
4,461 103,546
At 31st December, 2015, other receivables and deposits paid R-E—RF+-_A=1+—8 " UEK&H

the
currency other than the functional currencies of the relevant
group entities, are HK$3,741,000 (2014: HK$3,767,000).

that are denominated in Mongolian Tughrik (“MNT"),

CNNC International Limited A ixBEEAHRE A A

ERExm((BRER)GEESEEE
e B AN BHE) 5B 2 E fh FE U
XE’ EfTE] & /513,741,000 (=
PO 4F : 7% #53,767,0007T) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements ... ‘ ;’
GAMBRRME - &

For the year ended 31st December, 2015 ' \f.'-_- -
BRE-Z-AF+-A=+-ALFE @

19. AMOUNT DUE FROM AN ASSOCIATE 19. Bt ZE A S RIE

2015 2014
—¥—-4F —F-mF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BRI BT T
Trade receivable FE W E 5 BR 3K — 35,745
Loan advance BB R 72,898 35,094
Total amount due from an associate (note) JE W2 Bk i R B SR 1B 4R R
(Bt &) 72,898 70,839
Less: Impairment loss R R (B &S 1B (72,898) —
— 70,839
Note:  On 2nd January, 2015, the Group entered into an agreement with Somina and agreed Mer: RZT—RF— ﬂ B A% EHSomina X Al E]
to extend the loan advance and the trade receivable with the total outstanding balance ST BEESomna AR EN TFTAEE
of US$9,135,000 (equivalent to HK$70,839,000) due from Somina to 31st December, ngﬁ’\ﬁmﬁ)‘guﬁl%%@ﬁ K2 REEABAE
2016 and it is interest bearing at Hong Kong Dollar Best Lending Rate quoted by The 9,135,000 7T (18 & # 7 #70,839,0007T) i& &
Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited plus 0.8% per annum, with a :Zt:? ANETZA=+—H REEBLBE
ceiling limit of 7.8% per annum. LIRTERRBARZ B T HREEERA =M
BF08%E  BFLRRBT8% °
Subsequently, in light of the deteriorating financial position of the associate as a result g SERMERARFIIEERBEELLSE
of the suspension of operation of the associate and no operating cash flow can be BemLHBMRRBA - 2T E EREE A
generated, the recoverability of the amount due from the associate is in doubt, and AIRIEES  REKBELATIREZERED
the carrying amount of amount due from the associate was fully impaired. BEBORE °

20. BANK BALANCES AND CASH 20. SRITHBR RIS

Bank balances carry interest at prevailing market rates which RITEBRIEN T0.01EE1.06% (= F
range from 0.01% to 1.06% (2014: 0.01% to 1.63%) per —PU4% : 0.01E=1.63E) ZIRITHIHE
annum. FIRETE ©
Bank balances that are denominated in currencies other than TXEHIAEBEEEB N EE
functional currencies of the relevant group entities are set out Aoz BE¥E BB 2 IRITAE B4
below:
Canadian Australian
dollars Renminbi dollars
HK$ (“CAD") MNT (“RMB") Euro (“AUD")
m AR |
B (Mo D) BE#ER TAR%ED Ex ((®xD
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BT T BT BETFT AETR
As at 31st December, 2015 RZ-ZT—HF+=-A=+—H 896 50 744 2,013 1 1
As at 31st December, 2014 RZF—NOE+=_A=+—8H 4,305 60 152 1,914 12 12
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GaMBERRME:

For the year ended 31st December, 2015
HE-FT—AF+t-A=+—HLEHFE

uw

21. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

ZLQMEH%EU&ﬁﬁﬂ

2015 2014
—E-EF — £
HK$'000 HK$'000
BRI BT T
Accruals & &t R 2,877 3,033
Other payables (note) E b e 5 5k 18 (B 5F) 13,404 11,734
16,281 14,767
Other payables that are denominated in currencies other than TXHEHINAEBEEEERE 2 B
the functional currencies of the relevant group entities are set LA 9%215%5'] BEZENEZERRE
out below: fth FE 1~ 3K T
MNT HK$
BEER B
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
As at 31st December, 2015 R-_E—AF+-_A=+—H 13,226 10
As at 31st December, 2014 R-_ZE-—NFE+-_A=+—H 11,606 65

Note:  Included in other payables are HK$12,722,000 (2014: HK$11,251,000) due to the
joint operator of the joint operation disclosed in note 16. The amount is unsecured,

interest-free and no fixed term of repayment.

22. AMOUNTS DUE TO IMMEDIATE
HOLDING COMPANY/INTERMEDIATE
HOLDING COMPANY/ULTIMATE HOLDING
COMPANY/FELLOW SUBSIDIARIES

The amounts due to immediate holding company, intermediate
holding company, ultimate holding company and fellow

subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on
demand. The amounts are denominated in RMB, being the
currency other than the functional currency of the relevant group

entities.

23. DEFERRED TAXATION
At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused
tax losses of HK$44,198,000 (2014: HK$29,859,000) available
for offset against future profits. No deferred tax asset has
been recognised for the year in respect of the tax losses
of HK$44,198,000 (2014: HK$29,859,000) due to the
unpredictability of future profits streams. The tax losses may be

carried forward indefinitely.

74  CNNC International Limited # iz B AR A &

MiE: HthENRERER I BEBERGEEEL
2%@,@%%2?@&%127zzoooﬁ(:§—@$:
75 #11,251,00070) - ZERBEREER £ 8
EM&EE%&&W&

22. BEHEEF“H&’AEJ/qH‘r
;%H‘xt \1/3%'-{ H&l\
5/ EBZMEBATRIAE

Jf*@ﬁﬁ?ﬁ? BRAR - R ERAT
REERAF LR RN E QR A
REER RBEREEREE - ZKX
BAARE(IEEEEERIESR
N2 E#)FIME °

Al

23. REH 1A

RBERR AEEBZ ABHAFEES
18 575 #44,198,0007T (— & — PO 4F :
7% 1£29,859,0007T) + A] AR K $H B &
& o AT AETE A B 18 % I 2R R
G 9 £ kA% 18 U85 18 75 644,198,000
JL(=ZZ — U4 : % #29,859,0007T) #E
REEFHEEE - HIBABBAIERSY
e o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements ..
BAMBREME

For the year ended 31st December, 2015
HE-FT—AF+t-A=+—HLEHFE

24. SHARE CAPITAL 24. I X

Number of ordinary shares Amount
LERSE &8
2015 2014 2015 2014
—E—-RE —ZT—NF ZFT-AHE T —NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT T
Ordinary shares of BREEEK.01TZ
HK$0.01 each 5 A
Authorised: ERE
At 1st January and R—A—HBEK
31st December +=—A=+—H 1,000,000,000 1,000,000,000 10,000 10,000
Issued and fully paid: BETRAR:
At 1st January and R—A—HBEK
31st December +=—A=+—H 489,168,308 489,168,308 4,892 4,892

25. RESERVES 25. &1

The capital reserve mainly represents the aggregate amount
of the deemed «capital contribution of approximately
HK$50,723,000 from CNNC Overseas arising on acquisition of
Ideal Mining and deemed capital contribution of approximately
HK$30,748,000 from former substantial shareholders of the
Company in respect of shortfall of the guaranteed net assets
value of the Company’s certain major subsidiaries for the sale
of the Company’s equity interests to CNNC Overseas during the
year ended 31st December, 2010.

The non-distributable reserve represents the aggregate amount
of the share premium of the subsidiaries as at the time of a
group reorganisation effected on 13th December, 2002 (the
“Group Reorganisation”).

The merger reserve represents the difference between the
aggregate nominal amount of the share capital of the
subsidiaries and the nominal amount of the Company’s
shares issued in exchange thereof pursuant to the Group
Reorganisation.

BAFEEERPZEINEKEER
B W AR BT E 247 H50,723,000
TRARNFBHNEZERIERABEFEZ
#4975 #30,748,000c (RBE-ZE— &
F+_A=+—RHALEFERPZEI
HERRA z RiERRERAQASE
FTEEWBRRAIZERZEREEFELZ
FRREE) R -

NN KRFEHEER_ZEZ_F+_A1
+=HETEBREAHA(EBR=H])E
WEBA AR 2D RE AR -

EHERBARESEEARME AR
PRANEE A2 7R B AR A Bt ERR B IR
AFBETROEE IR EE -
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GEMBRRME

For the year ended 31st December, 2015
HE-ZT—AF+-A=1+—HBLEFE

26. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

16

The Company adopted a share option scheme for a period
of ten years commencing 11th December, 2002 pursuant to a
written resolution of all shareholders passed on 11th December,
2002 (“2002 Share Option Scheme”), for the primary purpose of
providing incentives or rewards to directors of the Company and
eligible employees of the Group. The 2002 Share Option Scheme
expired and was terminated on 11th December, 2012. A new
share option scheme was adopted by the Company pursuant
to a resolution passed on 31st May, 2013 (“2013 Share Option
Scheme”). Under the 2002 Share Option Scheme and 2013
Share Option Scheme, the Company may grant options to eligible
employees and directors of the Company and its subsidiaries, to
subscribe for shares in the Company. Additionally, the Company
may, from time to time, grant share options to outside eligible
advisors and consultants to the Company and its subsidiaries at
the discretion of its board of directors.

The number of shares which may be issued under the schemes
are subject to the following limits:

(i) the maximum number of shares in respect of which
options may be granted under the schemes and any
other share option scheme of the Company must not
in aggregate exceed 30% of the total number of issued
shares of the Company from time to time;

(i) without prior approval from the Company’s shareholders,
the total number of shares in respect of which options may
be granted under the schemes and any other share option
scheme is not permitted to exceed 22,000,000 shares and
48,916,830 shares for the 2002 Share Option Scheme and
2013 Share Option Scheme respectively, representing 10%
of the issued share capital of the Company at the dates
approving the schemes; and

(iii)  the number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted to any individual in any one year is not permitted
to exceed 1% of the issued share capital of the Company
as at the date of such grant.

A nominal consideration of HK$1 is payable upon acceptance of
the grant of the option. The exercise price is determined by the
directors of the Company and will be at least the higher of (i)
the average of the closing prices of the ordinary shares of the
Company for the five trading days immediately preceding the
date of the grant; (ii) the closing price of the ordinary shares
of the Company on the date of the grant; and (iii) the nominal
value of the ordinary shares of the Company.

CNNC International Limited A ixBEEAHRE A A

26. & fix #E 51 2

BEI2ERENR-_ZZE_F+-_/A+
—HEBZEERZR A2 ABE#H
Mm—IEEREFE (=T _FER
#ErEll) AT _F+-_A+—H
RBAEHTF TEBENARARAE
ERAEELEREEREE Bk
B  —EE_FHREIEE I
RZE—ZZF+ZA+—H&KIE - 1RIE
R-ZE—=FFA=1+—HBBZR
R CAQRDRMA—IEH B R E
(ZZF—=FERETE]) - BIE=
ST _FERENER T —=FE
B2 ARF A EEERETA
RAREHBARZAEREERS
o LREARAQRRG o M BA
REIZEZRZHMBERE A RERH
BRETAQARREMNBARZ IR
AERERRZHER -
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THARR :
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fB IME 5T 8 AT AR X L BB AR P
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(i) FERESAARBRESLIAE
AT - IRIEZ T8 & A ] E At BE
fR it BT RE R L BRI R 2
EHRE T _FHERE
R T —=FERESET
=2 Bl A~ 15 822,000,000 % &
48,916,830% - HE REZ S5
S EBHARAFTEHITRAZ
10% &

(i) AEA—FARAERERALE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements ..
BAMBREME

For the year ended 31st December, 2015
HE-FT—AF+t-A=+—HLEHFE

26.

27.

28.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued)

Any options granted under the schemes must be exercised during
such option period as may be determined and notified by the
directors of the Company, which shall not exceed 10 years from
the date of acceptance of the option.

No options have been granted under the 2002 Share Option
Scheme and the 2013 Share Option Scheme since their
adoption.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to shareholders through the optimisation
of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which
includes amounts due to immediate holding company,
intermediate holding company, ultimate holding company and
fellow subsidiaries, net of cash and cash equivalents, and
equity attributable to owners of the Company, comprising share
capital and reserves as disclosed in the consolidated financial

statements.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
annually. As part of this review, the directors of the Company
assess the annual budget prepared by management of the
Company. Based on the proposed annual budget, the directors
of the Company consider the cost of capital and the risks
associated with capital. The directors of the Company also
balance its overall capital structure through new share issues of
the Company as well as the issue of new debt or the redemption
of existing debt.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(@) Categories of financial instruments

26.

27.

28.

ARt #ERTEl o
BEZEHEFE L 2 EMEREAR
AR ESETRAMZZEBBRE
HERTE FHEPERTSEBER
RN E HBI0F -

E_SE _FHEKREFE A= —=
FHERET B ER QAR - I ERE
Z Lt B T ) BE R o

EXxEBER

AEBEEEREHEEAUBRASEER
BEEAKELE RANEBERLER
LR ZFERRRORRERS - A
SECERRBE T FEHEFIE -

AEBZEARBBREER  %FE
BERENERZERAR  FNMEK
DA REERABRFASRNEBE R
AIRE RERASFEMWFENAR
ARRIFEBEANEIEES (BREAME
WRABEZRARERE)

ARBAEEZBEFRHEARE - R
HEHZ B0 ARBESTHAR
AEEERHUCFEREEITHMG -
REZFFERE ARAAEFERE
BAKAREBEEABR AR - AR
AEFEMEBARE BRITHR LT
HESKBERREBESFATFEHELER
BRI -

EMIH
(@) EMIRZHEF

2015 2014
—F—IF —E-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETR BT T
Financial assets SREE
Loans and receivables (including cash and B & M HIE (B21ER
cash equivalents) EMREEEY) 352,872 384,727
Financial liabilities EA- =i
Amortised cost 55 B A 16,594 19,506
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For the year ended 31st December, 2015
HE-ZT—AF+-A=1+—HBLEFE

28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continues)

18

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies

The Group's major financial instruments include other
receivables, amount due from an associate, bank balances,
other payables and amounts due to immediate holding
company, intermediate holding company, ultimate holding
company and fellow subsidiaries. The risks associated with
these financial instruments and the policies on how to
mitigate these risks are set out below.

Credit risk

The Group’s principal financial assets include amount due
from an associate, other receivables and bank balances
and cash. The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk
in the event of the counterparties’ failure to perform their
obligations as at 31st December, 2015 in relation to each
class of recognised financial assets is the carrying amount
of those assets as stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

As mentioned in note 19, in light of the deteriorating
financial position of Somina as a result of the suspension
of operation of the associate and no operating cash flow
can be generated, the recoverability of the amount due
from the associate is in doubt, and the carrying amount
of amount due from the associate was fully impaired.

At 31st December, 2015, other than other receivables
as mentioned in note 18, the Group has no significant
concentration of credit risk. In order to minimise the credit
risk, management of the Group reviews the recoverable
amount of each individual receivable regularly to ensure
that follow up actions are taken to recover overdue debts
and adequate impairment losses, if any, are recognised for
irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the management of the
Group considers that the credit risk is significantly reduced.

In addition, the Group reviews the recoverable amount
of each individual receivable at the end of the reporting
period to ensure that adequate impairment losses are
recognised for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard,
the directors of the Company consider that the Group’s
exposure to bad debts and concentration risk is reduced.

CNNC International Limited A ixBEEAHRE A A

28. &R T B )
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For the year ended 31st December, 2015
HE-ZT—AF+-A=1+—HBLEFE

28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continvea)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and
pO“CiES (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

Credit

risk on bank balances is limited because the

counterparties are banks with good reputation.

Market risk

28. €t T R »
(b) 2rtEMEEHERBE

=
(#&)

EER =)
HREFHAEERTEEZR

7
R -

WRITHEBZEERREA

AR

(i) Foreign currency risk management () IMNEJE B B HE
While most of the Group's operations are transacted BERNEE KRNI ERTY
in the functional currencies of the respective group NEEBERB2EEK
entities, the Group undertakes certain transactions HEIT EAEBETET
denominated in foreign currencies. The Group NINEAFB2RS « A&
currently has not formulated any hedging policies = 30 B P M L AL B R B
against its exposure to currency risk. However, the Il E () R ER o 2AT
Group manages its foreign currency risk by closely N E I B ) B AN E
monitoring the movement of the foreign currency fE = B B IR HIMNE RS -
rate and will consider hedging significant foreign W R EFERERE LA
currency exposure should the need arise. BERINER R o
The carrying amounts of the Group’s monetary REBLUINEEZEE
assets and monetary liabilities denominated in BEIE®EEERMER
foreign currencies at the end of both reporting EHRZEEEWNT :
periods are as follows:
HK$ CAD MNT RMB Euro AUD
L mE EHREE  ARS Bt |5
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETR BETRE AETRT BETT BETI BETx
As at 31st December, 2015 R=T—-HAf+=-A=+—8
Assets BE 896 50 4,484 2,013 1 1
Liabilities BE 10 — 13,226 3,311 — —
As at 31st December, 2014 R-E¥F—-NE+=-A=+—H
Assets BE 4,305 60 3,920 1,914 12 12
Liabilities =K1 65 = 11,606 2,615 — —
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For the year ended 31st December, 2015
HE-ZT—AF+-A=1+—HBLEFE

28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continvea)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
pOliCiES (Continued)
Market risk (Continued)

(1)

(i1)

28. ERt T B
(b) 2rtEMGEEHERBE

/425
(#&)

ﬁf'i%‘?/ﬂﬂﬁ(@)

Foreign currency risk management (continued) () SR fr B EE )
Sensitivity analysis BRE DN
The following table details the Group’s sensitivity TRFMASEELHETH
to a 5% (2014: 5%) increase and decrease in H B8 ONEE F BK5% (ZF —
US$ against the relevant foreign currencies. 5% MU :5%) 2 B RXE ° 5%
(2014: 5%) represents management’s assessment —E—OFE:5%)5ERE
of the reasonably possible change in foreign [BE NS E R AT g H 3R 2
exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis includes EEEH TG BIRE
only outstanding foreign currencies denominated DATE B R W E R
monetary items at the end of the reporting period REE T 2 AINEE DI B & 8
and adjusted for a 5% (2014: 5%) change in foreign IHE - WEINEERSY (=
currency rates. A positive number below indicates a T—PO& :5%) B &EHT
decrease in loss where US$ weakens 5% (2014: 5%) B PUTNIEHIEE T A AR
against the relevant currencies. For a 5% (2014: 5%) MEBRESS (ZF—MX
strengthening of US$ against the relevant currencies, F:5%) BEAMRD -
there would be an equal and opposite impact on EETLAMEBEEEAES%
loss. Since HK$ is pegged to US$, relevant foreign —Z U4 : 5%) ' AJREH
currency risk is minimal and is excluded from the EEEREEARZZE -
calculation below. AR BEEEEITHE 8 - )
MEANERRBRIZE - AT
HERTTBRELEA -
CAD MNT RMB Euro AUD
mrx BEHBER AR Ex T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AMTRE BETR AMTR AMTR BETR
2015 —EB—-1F
Decrease (increase) in loss for the year F 18R 2 (3 ) 3 (437) (65) 1 1
2014 —T—-mE
Decrease (increase) in loss for the year F 18R 2 (4 hn) 3 (384) (35) 1 1
Interest rate risk (i) T EE 2

The Group’s exposure to changes in interest rates
is mainly attributable to its bank balances. Bank
balances at variable rates expose the Group to cash
flow interest-rate risk. Details of the Group’s bank
balances are disclosed in note 20.

CNNC International Limited A ixBEEAHRE A A
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For the year ended 31st December, 2015
HE-ZT—AF+-A=1+—HBLEFE

28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continvea)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and
pOliCiES (Continued)
Market risk

(11)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

The Group is not exposed to significant cash flow
interest-rate risk on financial instruments as the
interest of the Group’s financial liabilities and
fluctuation in interest rate are insignificant. Also,
the directors of the Company consider that interest
bearing bank deposits are within short maturity
period and the effect on fluctuation in interest rate

is insignificant.

At 31st December, 2014, the Group was exposed to
fair value interest rate risk in relation to the fixed
rate interest bearing portion of amount due from an
associate. Starting from January 2015, the amount
due from an associate carried floating interest rate
and the Group will be exposed to cash flow interest
rate risk.

The Group currently does not have an interest rate
hedging policy. However, management monitors
interest rate exposure and will consider hedging
significant interest rate exposure should the need
arise.

Liquidity risk
In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group

monitors and maintains a

level of cash and cash

equivalents deemed adequate by management to finance

the Group’s operations and mitigate the effects of

fluctuations in cash flows.

28. €t T R »
(b) 2rtEMEEHERBE

/43
(#&)

i 45 /el B

(11)

Tl 3 J7 Bz )
HRASEERmEE 27
BEAMEZREHTEE
WAEETEG T A
A ¥ B X &% EHER
@ oo AN ARRREER
B REFREBRITERD
EEEARE BRI RE
B EIETEM -

RZE—WOE+=A=+—
B - N& B 3R M 197
55 2 FE W = A B BOIR
2 [& FE A 2 5 B EB o i
XATEMNERR BT
—hFE—AR% - EREE
NAEIFIBERZEFEGTE
MAEBBEAIBEERE
F =B g o

R &2 [ 3R B 3 4 A 2R
BE- A EEESE
BN RE R LG T EE
EREPERN KGR

B & = B BE

REBRBASERE - A%LH
BEERESRSRRSSEDY
EREBERBRRZKT - I
BAAEEZEEMEE SRR
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28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continues)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

(c)

82

pOliCiES (Continued)

LiqudIty risk (Continued)

The following table details Group’s contractual maturity for
its non-derivative financial liabilities based on the agreed
repayment terms. The table has been drawn up based on
the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based
on the earliest date on which the Group can be required
to pay. The tables include both interest and principal cash

28. &t T A »
(b) 2rtEMGEEHERBE

s
45
(452

REELERE =

TERFVIASEETESRHERE
BB EERIRR2E LR HIE
Moo ZRBIIBEARSEAIGEE
NRzxFHBzEmBEREE
HRERERE - ZRIEBEHEF
BEARGHEERE °

flows.
Weighted On demand Total Total
average or less than undiscounted carrying
interest rate 30 days cash flows amount
i i BERS KUHRE
EFE 21308 FEREE REMAE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
% BT T BT BETT
As at 31st December, 2015 HR-B—-AE+=-H=+-—H
Other payables H fth A — 13,404 13,404 13,404
Amount due to ultimate holding company B SRR AR RIE — 1,473 1,473 1,473
Amount due to intermediate holding company FER RN ERARRIE — 1,596 1,596 1,596
Amount due to fellow subsidiaries FEAT A& X8R R R IE — 121 121 121
16,594 16,594 16,594
As at 31st December, 2014 R-T—NFE+=A=+—H
Other payables H th A — 11,734 11,734 11,734
Amount due to ultimate holding company FEAT SRR R B HIE — 91 91 91
Amount due to intermediate holding company RN ERARKIE — 1,756 1,756 1,756
Amount due to immediate holding company EREZEERATRIE — 5,157 5,157 5,157
Amount due to fellow subsidiaries B — R &R MR A R IR — 768 768 768
19,506 19,506 19,506
Fair value (0 AF{E

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities are
determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing
models based on discounted cash flow analysis.

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying
amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded
at amortised cost in the consolidated financial statements
approximate to their fair values.

CNNC International Limited A ixBEEAHRE A A

TREERSBRABZAFET
UBRBEREDMREERE
BEEARZIEBEAEE -

ARBEERR  RNEAWHR
RNREHKIA R Z G EE
AemAEREEEEAFEME

4+

= o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements ..
BAMBREME

For the year ended 31st December, 2015
HE-FT—AF+t-A=+—HLEHFE

29.

30.

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 29. EEHERIE
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had outstanding RBEHR  ANEBREBERS A
commitments for future minimum lease payments under non- R 2RI HEGCEHE  RTAIF
cancellable operating leases for rented premises which fall due BRI N AEEREREEEN
as follows: HAFEWT
2015 2014
—E-1F —T-mF
HK$'000 HK$'000
EETR BT T
Within one year —F A 1,105 1,423
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_FEFREF
(BEERMF) — 1,012
1,105 2,435
Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group KEHENRIEBEASBEHRESE THA
for certain of its office. Leases are negotiated for a terms of 1 ERENZES  FIBEZN T HESF
to 3 years initially and rentals are fixed and no arrangements HAIE3IF - He HEE BX &5
have been entered into for contingent rental payments. SRMES T RETLEMLHE ©
RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES 30. 3& K 48 F 5+ &1

Effective from 1st December, 2000, the Group has participated
in a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”)
for all its eligible employees in Hong Kong. The MPF Scheme
is registered with the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Authority under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately
from those of the Group in funds under the control of an
independent trustee. Under the rules of the MPF Scheme,
the employer and its employees are each required to make
contributions to the scheme at rates specified in the rules. The
only obligation of the Group with respect to the MPF Scheme
is to make the required contributions under the scheme. No
forfeited contributions are available to reduce the contribution
payable in the future years.

Pursuant to the relevant labour rules and regulations in the
Mongolia, the Group participates in defined contribution
retirement benefit schemes (“the Schemes”) organised by the
Government of Mongolia whereby the Group is required to
make contributions to the Schemes at a rate of 11%-13% of the
eligible employees’ salaries. Contributions to the Schemes vest
immediately.

During the year, the total amount contributed by the Group to
the relevant retirement benefit schemes is HK$97,000 (2014:
HK$129,000).

AEBEH_ZTEFE+_A—BER
HEEMERERERZEH —THAH
Mo E(RESFED - RE
At ERERSERE S BEDIE
BEEREEFEEEREM - B
B CEERB U ETAEZES - &
AEBZEESRARFTA REBRRES
Bz BERERBERBEAR
MAEE Z L R BIE R R - &
SERRESAEEAZHE—BER
REBEAEMFEFLAABHRR - AKERE
78 WA TR DA BRI R R AR K A 2 A

=5
A °

BRESHZHEBETEZRLRM K
SE2ELERTERZ ERMRER
RENEE ((ZFT8)) - Bt - A%
BEREERREBEHEZ1N%EIZ%A
ZERTEIE R - MZFAHE 23
RBESEE -

FRAEEMABRAKBEFGE 28
KA B ¥E97,000T (Z T — W F : &
#129,0007T) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements ...
GEMBRRME

For the year ended 31st December, 2015
HE-ZT—AF+-A=1+—HBLEFE

31. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

The following transactions and balances were entered into during

the year or outstanding at the end of the reporting period

respectively.

0]

(ii)

Remuneration of directors and other
members of key management

The remuneration of directors and other members of key
management during the year was as follows:

31. AER W=
AR % 5 R 45 8 9 BI R 4 P9 AT Sz st
SEE RSP B

()

EERHEMOEEERER
EZNE
FREERHMWEIZEEENXE
ZHMewmnT

2015 2014

—E-1F —E-mE

HK$'000 HK$'000

BETT BT T

Short-term benefits % H 1@ A 4,566 5,110
Post-employment benefits pEXrN 67 85
4,633 5,195

The remuneration of directors and key executives is
determined by the remuneration committee having regard
to the performance of individuals and market trends.

Transactions and balances with PRC
government-related entities in the PRC

The Group operates in an economic environment currently
pre-dominated by entities controlled, jointly controlled or
significantly influenced by the PRC government.

In addition, the Group itself is part of a larger group of
companies under CNNC which is controlled by the PRC
government. The transactions and balances are disclosed
in note 22.

The Group has also entered into various transactions,
including deposits placements with certain banks and
financial institutions which are PRC government-related
entities in its ordinary course of business. The directors of
the Company are of the opinion that except as disclosed
above, transactions with other PRC government related
entities are not significant to the Group’s operations.
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(ii)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements ...
GEMBRRME

For the year ended 31st December, 2015
HE-ZT—AF+-A=1+—HBLEFE

31. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (continvea)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

Note:

During the year ended 31st December, 2015, the Group
interest of HK$2,054,000 (2014:
HK$1,417,000) on the amount due from an associate as

recognised accrued

disclosed in note 19.

During the year ended 31st December, 2015, the Group
paid rental and related expenses of HK$2,096,000 (2014:
HK$2,196,000) to the ultimate holding company, for its
office in Beijing, the PRC. (Note)

During the year ended 31st December, 2014, the associate
of the Group made sales of uranium of HK$311,987,000 to
a fellow subsidiary of the Company, which is a subsidiary
of CNNC.

During the year ended 31st December, 2014, the Group
made sales of uranium of HK$520,380,000 to the
immediate holding company of the Company. (Note)

During the year ended 31st December, 2014, the Group
paid technical support fee of HK$750,000 to fellow
subsidiaries of the Company, which is a subsidiary of
CNNC. (Note)

Apart from the sales of uranium to the immediate holding company of the Company
and the tenancy agreement and technical support agreements entered into by the
Company and subsidiaries of CNNC, none of the above related party transactions
constitutes a Disclosed Continuing Connected Transaction as defined in the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange.

31. FAEFHE

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii) 2= —

B Ak <

2015 Annual Report

HE-_ZT-—RAF+-A=+—H
IEFEA  NEBERETHE
5 #2,054,000C (=& — Y £ -

& #51,417,0007T) /R Q 48 B 5
197 # FE W Bk & A R FRIE o

HE-ZT-—RF+=-A=+—H
EFEA  AEEREMRARR
IR ZWEFERIARRZ &ENE
BAREZHHAE KA A B
2,096,000 C (=& — 4 £F : B #&
2,196,0007T) ° (Fff &)

HE_Z—NF+=—RA=+—H
miﬁw NEE—HEE QR
MARAR—HRSRMEAR (R
FZER 2B AR EEBK
311,987,000 2 & £ @@ ©

HE-Z—WNF+-_A=+—H
LEFER AEBERARARZEH
B iR A R) $H & B 520,380,000
TTZMEM - (M)

mME+=—A=+—8H
HEFER AEBRAABRE
EWNBRAR(AFZEE 2 —M
MEBARXNENMZEERS
#750,0007T ° (FI &%)

BRAARRZERERARHEHMERARAE
AR R B2 B R E R 2 AR B A
BT 0 a8 S0 bl BE 3 05 R 5 T R K
RAEFLETRAUMEBZERBERBBER
2.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements ...
BOBEBEME .

For the year ended 31st December, 2015
HE-FT—AF+t-A=+—HLEHFE

32. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 32. XA HBRARFEER
AND RESERVES OF THE COMPANY
(a) Statement of financial position of the Company at the end (@) MIMEBRARRABFEAMR R EK

of the reporting period:

2015 2014
—T-AE —T—mE
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT I
Non-current assets FERBE E
Investments in subsidiaries RHB AR 2R E 253,969 389,684
Amount due from a subsidiary A NGRS 48,641 46,059
302,610 435,743
Current assets MENE E
Other receivables and prepayments H A & WO IE LA K
FEftRIAE 145 145
Amounts due from subsidiaries & W I |8 A B 5K IB 36,824 236,688
Bank balances and cash WRITHEBRIA® 273,330 82,307
310,299 319,140
Current liabilities VER=RE
Other payables and accruals H i JE S SRIE A K& FE
FERAK 1,224 1,610
Amount due to immediate holding JENEHZZER AR
company I — 5,157
Amount due to intermediate holding FEAST R 1 AR A A
company KIE — 320
Amount due to a fellow subsidiary FERT R & R E A A
A — 24
Amount due to a subsidiary JE 15 B B A B FXIE 3,276 3,276
4,500 10,387
Net current assets mENE EFE 305,799 308,753
Total assets less liabilities BEFE 608,409 744,496
Capital and reserves B R I 5
Share capital % s 4,892 4,892
Reserves f& &8 603,517 739,604
608,409 744,496
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements ... ﬂ
GEMBRRME

For the year ended 31st December, 2015 ‘\_a‘( -
BRE-Z-AF+-A=+-ALFE @

32. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 32. KA TIB BBk 5 B fit e 3R
AND RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (continued) ()

(b) Statement of changes in equity (b) BEXREFHF
Non-
Share Share Capital distributable Translation Accumulated

capital premium reserve reserve reserve losses Total

BE BRHOBE BEEE TIFRERE KREHESE Rt R @t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BETT B¥TT BEETT BETT B¥T BETT BETRH

At 1st January, 2014 R-T—HmHFE—-A—H 4,892 868,805 30,748 98,291 524 (82,209) 921,051
Loss and total comprehensive expense 4 A /518 J 2 F 7 40 5

for the year — — — — — (176,556)  (176,556)

Exchange differences arising on BREEECERLER

translation — — — — 1 — 1

At 31st December, 2014 R-Z—WE+=A=+—R 4,892 868,805 30,748 98,291 525 (258,765) 744,496
Loss and total comprehensive expense & A5 18 J 2 H 2 #8 8

for the year — — — — — (136,087)  (136,087)

At 31st December, 2015 RZZ—AF+=-A=+—8° 4,892 868,805 30,748 98,291 525 (394,852) 608,409

33. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 3. ANTEEMBATFHE
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at the end of both RAERERR  RAAR 2 ERMEB
reporting periods are as follows: RAFEIAT :
Place of  Issued and fully paid Proportion of nominal value of issued/ registered
Name of subsidiary Place of incorporation operation share/ registered capital capital held by the Company Principal activities
ERTRYRRE/
MEASEE & AR 3L 3 B ZERY HRRAE FATARBAERT /ERRETEZILH TEEH
Directly Indirectly
HE Gk
2015 2014 2015 2014
—¥-if _T-NF CZ¥-1f _T-0F
% % % %
China Nuclear International Corporation  British Virgin Islands (“BVI”)  Hong Kong Ordinary shares US$50,000 100 100 — — Investment holding
THREREEERAR RBEBRES Bk 38 AR50,000% T 100 100 - — REER
(XBEBRES]
CNNC International (HK) Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong Ordinary shares HK$10,000 — = 100 100 Service company
RRER(FE)ERAF B 36 AR % $10,0007C - — 100 100 RB AR
Emeelt Mines LLC Mongolia Mongolia  Registered capital — — 100 100 Mineral exploration in the
US$10,000 Mongolia
Emeelt Mines LLC ) 54 AR 410,000 7T - — 100 100 RELRE
Ideal Mining BVI Hong Kong Registered capital 100 100 - — Investment holding
US$50,000
BRBE KRAEBRES X it A& 450,000 7T 100 100 - — REER
Western Prospector Mongolia LLC Mongolia Mongolia  Registered capital — — 100 100 Mineral exploration in the
US$10,000 Mongolia
Western Prospector Mongolia LLC E ) AR A510,000% 7T — — 100 100 RELRE
Focus International Development BVI Hong Kong Ordinary shares US$50,000 — = 100 100 Trading of uranium
Corporation
FHERERERAT RREBREE B 38R 50,0005 T — — 100 100 HERES
None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the EAFEFE  WENBARETHE
end of the year. AfE®KE 7 o
The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, ERMIREZTRRBEIELELRSE
in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results, X5 BAERAGBZARARIKBATR °
assets and liabilities of the Group. To give details of other EERRINBEMMBAR ZFES
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result in FERBRITE -

particulars of excessive length.
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Financial Summary
BB E

Set out below is a financial summary of the Group for each of the LA TRHIAEEBHE-T—RAF+_-_A=+
five years ended 31st December, 2015: — AR EFESF2HBHE:

RESULTS E

For the year ended 31st December,
BE+-_A=+—HLEE
2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
—E——F ZT2—_F ZZ-—=F _T-NF ZF¥-ILE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT BBt BBt A¥Txn EBTR

Revenue W z= 93,303 417,442 1,168,097 520,380 57,755
Loss before taxation B RTE B (60,824) (23,184) (4,749)  (156,223) (220,599)
Taxation credit (charge) BIEE R (ZH) 3,431 (2,954)  (13,864) (174) —
Loss for the year FREE (57,393) (26,138) (18,613)  (156,397) (220,599)
Loss per share FBRES
— basic (HK cents) — BEARGE) (13.1) (5.3) (3.8) (32.0) (45.1)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERE(E
As at 31st December,
R+=-—HA=+—H
201 2012 2013 2014 2015
T ZFT—_F _T—=F —_T-NF ZFT—-AEF
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000 HK$'000
BEFT AT AT AT EETR
Total assets mEE 1,390,804 1,395,599 994,570 832,495 608,716
Total liabilities BEE (399,455)  (430,852) (47,599) (41,899) (38,831)
Equity attributable to owners KRR A A
of the Company JE 15 7 25 991,349 964,747 946,971 790,596 569,885
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Unit 2809, 28th Floor
China Resources Building
26 Harbour Road, Wanchai
Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 2598 1010
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